
 
 AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS – CITY HALL – 214 N. CENTER STREET 
OCTOBER 15, 2018 

(Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 
 

I. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 

II. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – CITY HALL ADDITION, 200 N. CENTER ST., ROOM 206 
                       OLD BUSINESS 

a. T.C. Coley Community Center Discussion (Mayor)  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
b. GWTA Board Request (Mayor)  
c. Teacher salary increase. The City of Goldsboro to provide the inner city teachers with a 1%-

3% salary increase. North Drive, Carver Heights, Dillard Middle and Goldsboro High 
school. (Councilmember Foster) 

 
III. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER ST. 

  Invocation (Associate Pastor Raymond Deck, Freedom Baptist Church) 
Pledge to the Flag 

 

IV. ROLL CALL 
 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (*Motion/Second) 
A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of October 1, 2018 
 

VI. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Sally Johnson as an Employee of 

the City of Goldsboro for More Than 42 Years 
C. Golden STAR Award Recipients (Human Resources) 

 

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS  
D. Z-15-18 Lane Farms, Inc. – North and South sides of New US 70 Bypass between Salem Church 

Road and Claridge Nursery Road  (Planning)  
E. Z-16-18 Sarah Edwards – North side of Vann Street between Bruce Street and Vann Street 

Terminus (Planning)  
F. CU-10-18 Ruffin & Jackson – South side of Wilmington Avenue between Isler Street and 

Devereaux Street (Planning) 
G. Street Name Change – Keenway Drive to Keller Way Drive (Planning) 

 PLANNING COMMISSION EXCUSED 
H. Public Hearing – 2017-2018 CAPER (Community Relations)  

  

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD (TIME LIMIT OF 3 MINUTES PER SPEAKER) 
 

IX. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (*Motion/Second--Roll Call) 
I. Budget Amendment – IT Equipment (Finance) 
J. Budget Amendment for Workers’ Compensation Claims (Finance) 
K. Resolution accepting the State Revolving Fund Loan, Increase Capital Projects Ordinance and 

Budget Amendment for Loan Closing Fees (Finance) 
L. Resolution for Designation of Applicant’s Agent – Hurricane Florence (Finance) 
M. Victorian Mourning Practices – Temporary Street Closing Request (Police)  
N. Veterans Day Parade and Celebration – Street Closing Request (Police) 
O. Downtown Lights Up! Street Closing Request (Police) 
P. Goldsboro Historic District Commission Appointments (City Manager) 
Q. Little Washington Growing Group Land Lease Agreement (City Manager)  
R. Adoption of a Supplement to the Code of Ordinances of Goldsboro, North Carolina (City 

Manager) 



 
S. Departmental Monthly Reports 

 

X. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION (*Motion/Second) 
 

XI. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
T. Safety First on Halloween Proclamation  
 

XIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 

XIV. ADJOURN 
 



1 

MINUTES OF MEETING OF MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL HELD 
OCTOBER 1, 2018 

WORK SESSION 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work 
Session in the Large Conference Room, City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, at 
5:00 p.m. on October 1, 2018 with attendance as follows: 

Present: Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding 
Mayor Pro Tem David Ham 
Councilmember Antonio Williams  
Councilmember Bill Broadaway 
Councilmember Mark Stevens 
Councilmember Bevan Foster 
Councilmember Gene Aycock 
Ron Lawrence, Attorney 
Randy Guthrie, Interim City Manager  
Melissa Corser, City Clerk 
LaToya Henry, Public Information Officer  
Octavius Murphy, Assistant to the City Manager  
Jennifer Collins, Planning Director 
Kaye Scott, Finance Director  
Mike West, Police Chief 
Scott Williams, IT Director 
Felicia Brown, Assistant P&R Director  
Mike Wagner, Deputy Public Works Director – Utilities 
Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director  
Joe Dixon, Fire Chief  
Shycole Simpson-Carter, Community Relations Director 
Allen Anderson, Chief Building Inspector  
Julie Metz, DGDC Director 
Bernadette Dove, HR Director 
Freeman Hardison, GWTA  
Joey Pitchford, Goldsboro News-Argus  
Ken Conners, News Director-Curtis Media Group East 
Dale Armstrong, Cherry Hospital 
Lonnie Casey, Citizen 
Taj Pollack, Citizen 
Carl Martin, Citizen 
Bobby Mathis, Citizen  
Della Mathis, Citizen  
David Weil, Citizen 
Amy Bauer, Citizen 
Jay Bauer, Citizen  
Shirley Edwards, Citizen 
Kimberly Rhodes, Citizen 
Yvonnia Moore, Citizen 
Wells Warner, Golf Course Committee
Byron Ash, Golf Course Committee
Joe Thomas, Golf Course Committee
Richard Farfour, Golf Course Committee
Douglas Safford, Golf Course Committee
Milas Kelly, Golf Course Committee
Gina Price, Golf Course Committee
Sylvia Barnes, Citizen (arrived at 5:11 p.m.) 
Ravonda Jacobs, Citizen (arrived at 5:51 p.m.) 

Call to Order.  The meeting was called to order by Mayor Allen at 5:00 p.m. 

Adoption of the Agenda.  Councilmember Broadaway made a motion to adopt 
the agenda.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Aycock.  Mayor Allen, Mayor 

Item A



2 
 
 

Pro Tem Ham, Councilmembers Broadaway, Stevens and Aycock voted in favor of the 
motion.  Councilmembers Williams and Foster voted against the motion.  Mayor Allen 
stated the motion passed 5:2. 

 
Naming of Former WA Foster Center.  Ms. LaToya Henry shared the following 

information: 
 Survey mailed to all customers in August water bills. 
 Options: T.C. Coley Community Center, Leslie Street Community Center or other 

name of their choice 
 Response methods: Online, mail, phone, drop-off at City Hall 
 1,365 responses 

o 1,191 — T.C. Coley; 86 — Leslie Street 
 
Council discussed and consensus was to rename the Former WA Foster Center as the 
T.C. Coley Community Center.   

 
Former WA Foster Center Committee Discussion.  Mr. Randy Guthrie shared 

Council had previously discussed a seven (7) member board consisting of (2) city 
councilmembers, (1) member that is a tenant, (1) member from the public service 
community, (1) member from the business community, (1) member from the 
neighborhood and (1) member from the Mayor’s Youth Council. 
 
The following names have been recommended:  Steve Ashford (tenant), Don Chatman 
(public service), Comatha Johnson (public service), Kasey Jones (Mayor’s Youth 
Council), Thomas Washington (Shoe Shop – business community), Veda McNair and 
Maj. D. R. Halliday (neighborhood).   
 
Mayor Allen asked that if councilmembers had any other recommendations for proposed 
board members to please let Melissa or Laura know.   
 
Upon motion of Mayor Pro Tem Ham, seconded by Councilmember Aycock and 
unanimously carried, Council agreed to the seven (7) member board consisting of (2) city 
councilmembers, (1) member that is a tenant, (1) member from the public service 
community, (1) member from the business community, (1) member from the 
neighborhood and (1) member from the Mayor’s Youth Council. 
 

Cherry Hospital Overview (Dale Armstrong, CEO).  Mr. Dale Armstrong, 
CEO of Cherry Hospital, shared he has been moved from Interim CEO at Cherry to 
permanent CEO.  He shared information regarding Cherry Hospital and invited Council 
to take a tour of the new hospital. 

 
Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course Committee Report.  Mr. Byron Ash 

presented the following information on behalf of the Golf Course Committee: 
 
Overview 

 Final Budget Numbers for Past Two Years 
 Current Membership 
 GMGC is Unique 
 GMGC is Environmentally Friendly 
 On-going Projects 
 Committee Recommendations 

 
Final Budget Numbers for 2017 

 2017 Budget - $551,732 
 Funds Spent - $696,231 (Includes $42K Workman’s Comp & approx. $10K for 

Event Center Landscaping) 
 - $144,449 w/claim & landscaping 
 - $92,499 w/o claim& landscaping 
 Revenue Collected -  $516,873 
 Return to City 
 $372,424 or 68% w/claim  



3 
 
 

 $424,374 or 77% w/o claim 
**Source:  City Finance Office 

 
Final Budget Numbers for 2018 

 2018 Budget - $678,404 
 Funds Spent - $717,662 (Includes $83,063 Workman’s Comp) 
 Budget Deficit $39,258 w/claim 
 Budget Surplus $43,805 wo/claim 
 Revenue Collected - $521,563 
 Return to City 

– $482,305 or 71% w/claim  
– $565,368  or 83% w/o claim 

**Source: City Finance Office 
 
Current Membership 

 165 members as of August 27, 2018 
– 1 Junior 
– 28 Military 
– 43 Regular Members (59 and below) 
– 93 Senior Members (60 and up) 

**Source:  Jody Dean, Director of Golf, GMGC 
 
GMGC is Unique 

 Only Golf Course in Wayne County to host: 
– Veteran’s Day Event 
– GHS/EWHS/RHS, WCDS, UMO Golf Teams 
– Youth Fishing Camp 
– Canned Food Drive for Food Pantry 
– Back to School Event for Carver Heights Elementary 

 
GMGC is Environmentally Friendly 

 Only facility in Goldsboro using reclaimed water for irrigation 
– Conserves potable drinking water 
– Benefits ecosystems by eliminating contaminates (phosphorus and 

nitrates) back into the Neuse River 
– GMGC currently using about 30K gallons per day 

 Public Utilities funding could increase use to 400K gallons per day; better for 
environment 
**Source:  Mike Wagner, Public Utilities Director 

 
Ongoing/Future Projects 

 Bunker Restoration (FEMA $) 
– Early Fall Start  

 Memorial Pavers (Huge Success) 
– Sales Continue 

 Request for EagleCam 
 Food Pantry  
 Gifts for At Risk Youth 

 
Committee Recommendations 

 Eliminate all City funding with exception of employees and benefits 
– Upon Incumbent’s departure, hire a Golf Course Manager vs a PGA 

Professional  
– Move Maintenance Function directly under the Golf Course Manager 
– Provide a raise to those employees with 3 or more years of service ($8.50 

to $10.50 per hour) 
 Golf Course must survive on revenues generated 

– Simplify fee schedule for every day walk up play ($25 cart/green fees; $20 
cart/green fees Seniors/Military; $15 to walk)… Lower Fees = More Play 

– Contract out a Vendor to provide fresh sandwiches for GMGC Snack Bar 
w/portion of proceeds to be given back to GMGC 



4 
 
 

 Move funding of water reclamation equipment from GMGC to Public Utilities to 
enhance environmental contributions 

 
Summary 

 Golf Course Advisory Committee is dedicated to 
– Keeping GMGC OPEN 
– Finding ways to eliminate overspending of budget and unnecessary 

expenditures 
– Providing a quality place for people of all ages, colors, income levels to 

enjoy the game of golf 
 
Council discussed also discussed salaries and marketing of the golf course. 
 

Consent Agenda Review.  Each item on the Consent Agenda was reviewed.   
 
Item I. Budget Amendment – Contracting for Executive Search Services for 

the Position of City Manager.  Councilmember Foster stated he would like to see all 
applicants. 

 
Item L. Amending Water and Sewer Rate Structure.  Upon motion of Mayor 

Allen, seconded by Councilmember Aycock and unanimously carried, Council deferred 
Item L. Amending Water and Sewer Rate Structure for two weeks and remove it from the 
Consent Agenda. 

 
Item O. Monthly Reports.  Mayor Allen stated he noticed on the HR report there 

had been an uptick in vehicle accidents.   
 

Closed Session Held.  Upon motion of Councilmember Aycock, seconded by 
Councilmember Stevens and unanimously carried, Council convened into Closed Session 
to discuss a potential litigation matter.   
  
Council came out of Closed Session.  
 

There being no further business, the meeting recessed until the 7:00 p.m. meeting. 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 The Mayor and Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in regular 
session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on October 
1, 2018 with attendance as follows: 
 
 Present:  Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding 
   Mayor Pro Tem David Ham 

Councilmember Antonio Williams 
Councilmember Bill Broadaway 
Councilmember Mark Stevens  
Councilmember Bevan Foster 
Councilmember Gene Aycock  

  
 The meeting was called to order by Mayor Allen at 7:00 p.m. 

 
Archbishop Anthony Slater with Tehillah Church Ministries provided the 

invocation.  Boy Scout Ben Farfour led the Pledge to the Flag.   
 
Approval of Minutes.  Councilmember Aycock made a motion to approve the 

Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of August 20, 2018 and the Minutes 
of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of September 4, 2018 as submitted.  
Councilmember Broadaway seconded the motion.  Mayor Allen, Mayor Pro Tem Ham, 
Councilmembers Williams, Broadaway, Stevens and Aycock voted in favor of the 
motion.  Councilmember Foster voted against the motion.  Mayor Allen stated the motion 
carried 6:1. 
 



5 
 
 

 Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Ronnie Barnes 
as an Employee of the City of Goldsboro for More Than 20 Years.  Ronnie Barnes 
retires on October 1, 2018 as a Senior Firefighter with the Goldsboro Fire Department of 
the City of Goldsboro with more than 20 years of service.  Ronnie began his career on 
July 29, 1998 as a Firefighter with the Goldsboro Fire Department in the City of 
Goldsboro.  On June 24, 2015, Ronnie’s position was designated as a Senior Firefighter 
with the Goldsboro Fire Department where he has served until his retirement.  Ronnie has 
proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained the 
admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro.  
The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of 
themselves, City employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to 
Ronnie Barnes their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to 
the City over the years.  We express our deep appreciation and gratitude for the dedicated 
service rendered during Ronnie’s tenure with the City of Goldsboro.  We offer Ronnie 
our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity and good health in his future 
endeavors. 
 
Upon motion of Councilmember Aycock, seconded by Councilmember Stevens and 
unanimously carried Council adopted the following entitled Resolution.   
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-61 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION 
FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY RONNIE BARNES AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 20 YEARS” 
  
Mayor Allen presented a framed copy of the Resolution to Mr. Ronnie Barnes. 
 
 Contiguous Annexation Request – The Three J’s – North side of US 70 East 
between North Oak Forest Road and East Ash Street Extension (9.74 Acres).  Public 
Hearing Held.  Ordinance Adopted.  The City Council, at their meeting on August 20, 
2018, scheduled a public hearing for the proposed annexation of the subject property. A 
public hearing notice was properly advertised stating the time, place and purpose of the 
meeting. Due to the recent hurricane, the Council’s meeting of September 17, 2018 was 
cancelled and the public hearing was  rescheduled to October 1, 2018. 
 
Pursuant to G. S. 160A-31, at the public hearing all persons owning property in the area 
proposed to be annexed, as well as the residents of the municipality, shall be given an 
opportunity to be heard on the proposed annexation. 
 
If the Council determines that the proposed annexation meets all the requirements of G. 
S. 160A-31, it has the authority to adopt an annexation ordinance. 
 
A report prepared by the Department of Planning and Community Development, in 
conjunction with other departments, is available concerning the subject annexation area.  
All City services can be provided to the property. 
 
Mayor Allen opened the public hearing, no one spoke and the public hearing was closed.   
 
Upon motion of Councilmember Aycock, seconded by Councilmember Broadaway and 
unanimously carried Council adopted the following entitled Ordinance annexing The 
Three J’s Property effective October 31, 2018. 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2018-47 “AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING CERTAIN 
CONTIGUOUS REAL PROPERTY TO THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH 
CAROLINA”  
 

Public Comment Period.  Mayor Allen opened the public comment period.  No 
one spoke and the Public Comment Period was closed.   
 
 Consent Agenda - Approved as Recommended. Interim City Manager, Randy 
Guthrie, presented the Consent Agenda.  All items were considered to be routine and 
could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a 
Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda 



6 
 
 

and discussed and considered separately.  In that event, the remaining item(s) on the 
Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call vote.  Mr. Guthrie 
reminded Council, Item L. Amending Water and Sewer Rate Structure was deferred for 
two weeks and removed from the Consent Agenda during the Work Session.  
Councilmember Stevens moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items D, E, F, G, H, I, 
J, K, M, N, and O be approved as recommended by the Interim City Manager and staff.  
The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Ham and a roll call vote resulted in Mayor 
Allen, Mayor Pro Tem Ham, Councilmembers Williams, Broadaway, Steven, and 
Aycock voting in favor of the motion.  Councilmember Foster voted against the motion.  
Mayor Allen declared the Consent Agenda approved as recommended by a 6:1 vote. The 
items on the Consent Agenda were as follows: 
 

S-1-18 FLO-D, LLC (Preliminary Subdivision Plat).  Approved.  The property 
is located on the north side of Fedelon Trail between Salem Church Road and North 
William Street. 
 
Total Area:   27.95 acres 
Total Lots:   2 
 
Lot No. 1:   2.0 acres 
Lot No. 2:   25.95 acres 
  
Zoning:  R-20 Residential and Watershed Overlay  
  
On July 30, 2007, City Council approved a final plat for Section 6 of Spring Garden 
Subdivision which terminates at the lots included within the current subdivision known as 
Flo-D, LLC.  Access for both of the lots included within the subdivision would be from 
the terminus of Granville Drive. 
 
The owner of the subject property proposes dividing the land into two lots, one of which 
is to be sold for residential development. The remaining Lot No. 2 is not proposed for 
development or sale at this time, however, the purchaser of Lot No. 1 has expressed a 
possible interest in its future purchase. 
 
The City’s UDO requires the installation of a permanent cul-de-sac at the terminus of 
Granville Drive. With the uncertainty as to future development, the owner has requested 
a modification of this requirement for up to a three-year period. 
 
The property is currently vacant and not located within a Special Flood Hazard Area. The 
property abuts the city limits along its southern property line and is within the City’s 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction. 
 
Both lots in the subdivision can be served by City water.  City sewer is not available.  
Wayne County Environmental Health will evaluate lots for septic suitability and on-site 
wastewater systems.  
 
The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on September 24, 2018, recommended 
approval of the two-lot preliminary plat with the requested modification. 
 
Staff recommended Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and 
approve the two-lot preliminary subdivision plat with a modification of the requirement 
to provide a cul-de-sac at the terminus of Granville Drive for a three-year period.  
Consent Agenda Approval.  Stevens/Ham (6 Ayes/1 No – Foster)  
 

S-3-17 Sasser Home Builders, Inc. (Cypress Ridge Subdivision; Preliminary 
Plat, Section 2).  Approved.  The property is located on the south side of Princess Drive 
between Barden Scott Lane and Hillside Drive. 
 
Total Area:   23.13 acres 
Total Lots:   43 
Zoning:   R-16 Residential 
  



7 
 
 

 On June 5, 2017, Goldsboro City Council approved a 15-lot preliminary subdivision plat 
for Section 1 of Cypress Ridge Subdivision.    
 
The owner of the property now intends to divide the remaining tract into 43 lots.  The 
owner intends to sell lots for single-family residential construction. 
 
The subdivision plat includes the dedication of two new 60 ft. wide streets to be known 
as Avalor Drive and Arendale Drive. 
 
The property is located outside the city limits and within the one-mile extraterritorial 
jurisdiction. 
 
The property is currently vacant and not located within a Special Flood Hazard Area. 
 
City water and sewer are not available to serve the proposed subdivision.   
All lots will be provided water by Fork Sanitary District.  Wayne County Environmental 
Health will evaluate lots for septic suitability and on-site wastewater systems.   
 
Owner is requesting a modification of the City’s curb and gutter requirement as well as 
the City’s requirement to provide sidewalks within the subdivision as was approved in 
Section 1. 
 
Due to an existing ditch, a modification of the cul-de-sac requirement at the end of 
Hillside Drive has been requested. The right-of-way will extend to the property line to 
allow for future connection when development of that property is proposed. 
 
All necessary engineering-related street and stormwater requirements will have to be met 
prior to approval of any final plat for lots in the future. 
 
The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on September 24, 2018 recommended 
approval of the preliminary plat subject to completion of all engineering-related 
requirements and with modifications of curb and gutter, sidewalks and cul-de-sac on 
Hillside Drive. 
 
Staff recommended Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and 
approve the 43-lot preliminary subdivision plat subject to completion of all engineering 
requirements and with the following modifications: 
 
 1. Curb and gutter; 
 2. Installation of sidewalks or fee in lieu of sidewalks;  and 

3. Cul-de-sac requirement at the end of Hillside Drive.  Consent Agenda 
Approval. Stevens/Ham (6 Ayes/1 No – Foster) 

 
S-7-87 Linwood and Rhonda Underhill (Briarheath Subdivision; Revision of 

Lot 50 of Section 1).  Approved.  The property is located on the north side of Country 
Day Road between Isaac Drive and Wayne Memorial Drive. 
 
Total Area:   2.68 acres 
Total Lots:  4 
 
Lot No. 1:   0.500 acres 
Lot No. 2:   0.546 acres 
Lot No. 3:   0.932 acres 
Lot No. 4:   0.202 acres 
 
Zoning:   R-16 Residential 
  
On January 22, 1988, City Council approved a final plat for Section 1 of Briarheath 
subdivision consisting of 50 lots for residential development.   
 



8 
 
 

The subject property (Lot 50) has been proposed for division into four lots.  The owner 
intends to sell Lot Nos. 1-3 for single-family construction and Lot No. 4 as additional 
acreage for adjacent property owners.   
 
The property is currently vacant and not located within a Special Flood Hazard Area. 
  
The proposed subdivision is serviced by City water and sewer. 
 
The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on September 24, 2018 recommended 
approval of the subdivision plat. 
 
Staff recommended Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and 
approve the four-lot preliminary subdivision plat for Lot 50 of Briarheath Section 1. 
Consent Agenda Approval. Stevens/Ham (6 Ayes/1 No – Foster) 
 

Professional Engineering Services for Water System Improvements – 
Amendment No. 1.  Ordinance and Resolution Adopted.  The City of Goldsboro was 
awarded a $3,610,000 DWSRF loan from the NC Division of Water Infrastructure in 
March 2018 to undertake water system improvements in the City. 
 
The City entered into a $30,000 engineering agreement with The Wooten Company on 
April 16, 2018 for the DWSRF Water System Preliminary Engineering Report and 
Environmental Information Report for the replacement of approximately 17,800 LF of 6 
through 10-inch line along Salem Church Road, Ash Street, Slocumb Street, and Elm 
Street of the City’s distribution system. 
 
Additional services authorized by Amendment No. 1 will include Field Survey, 
Engineering Design, Permitting, and Bidding for water system improvements detailed in 
the preliminary report. 
 
 Summary of Fees  
 Field Survey     $   18,500 
 Preliminary Engineering Design       37,000 
 Final Plans, Specifications, and Permitting      55,500 
 Final Plans and Specifications to 
 Funding Agency         55,500 
 Funding Agency Approval        18,500 
 Bidding and Negotiating          2,500 
 
 Total Amendment No. 1 for Water  $ 187,500 
 
We have reviewed the financing of this project with the Finance Director and determined 
that the operating budget for the 2018-19 Fiscal Year does not contain sufficient monies 
to authorize Amendment No. 1 to this engineering agreement. A budget ordinance and 
reimbursement resolution is required for the financing of this project. 
 
It is recommended the City Council, by motion: 
 

1. Adopt the following entitled Budget Ordinance appropriating $187,500 from 
the unassigned fund balance of the Utility Fund. 

 
2. Since the water projects will not be finalized until February 3, 2020, it is 

necessary that the attached reimbursement resolution be adopted declaring 
the City’s intent to use those funds for repayment to the City. 

 
3. Adopt the following entitled Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute 

Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Agreement for water system 
improvements for an amount not to exceed $187,500 with The Wooten 
Company.  Consent Agenda Approval.  Stevens/Ham (6 Ayes/1 No – Foster) 

 



9 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-48 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET 
ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2018-2019 FISCAL 
YEAR” 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-62 “RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO 
REIMBURSE THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA FROM THE 
PROCEEDS OF THE FINANCING FOR THE WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS” 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-63 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF 
AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY AND THE WOOTEN COMPANY FOR 
WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS” 
 

Professional Engineering Services for Wastewater System Improvements – 
Amendment No. 1.  Ordinance and Resolution Adopted.  The City of Goldsboro was 
awarded a $1,235,100 CWSRP loan from the NC Division of Water Infrastructure in 
March 2018 to undertake wastewater system improvements in the City.  
 
The City entered into a $20,000 engineering agreement with The Wooten Company on 
April 16, 2018 for the SRP Wastewater System Preliminary Engineering Report and 
Environmental Information Report for the rehabilitation of approximately 3,370 LF of 8-
inch, 12-inch, and 36-inch gravity sewer including the Big Ditch Outfall, Carolina Street, 
and Cherry Hospital portion of the City’s collection system. In addition, the project will 
include rehabilitation of 15 manholes and replacement of 25 services. 
 
Additional services authorized by Amendment No. 1 will include Field Survey, 
Engineering Design, Permitting, and Bidding for wastewater system improvements 
detailed in the preliminary report. 
 
 Summary of Fees  
 Field Survey     $     6,000 
 Preliminary Engineering Design       12,000 
 Final Plans, Specifications, and Permitting      18,000 
 Final Plans and Specifications to 
 Funding Agency         18,000 
 Funding Agency Approval          6,000 
 Bidding and Negotiating          2,500 
 
 Total Amendment No. 1 for Wastewater $   62,500 
 
We have reviewed the financing of this project with the Finance Director and determined 
that the operating budget for the 2018-19 Fiscal Year does not contain sufficient monies 
to authorize Amendment No. 1 to this engineering agreement. A budget ordinance and 
reimbursement resolution is required for the financing of this project. 
 
Staff recommended the City Council, by motion: 
 

1. Adopt the following entitled Budget Ordinance appropriating $62,500 from 
the unassigned fund balance of the Utility Fund. 

 
2. Since the wastewater projects will not be finalized until February 3, 2020, it 

is necessary that the attached reimbursement resolution be adopted declaring 
the City’s intent to use those funds for repayment to the City. 

 
3. Adopt the following entitled Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute 

Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Agreement for wastewater 
system improvements for an amount not to exceed $62,500 with The Wooten 
Company.  Consent Agenda Approval.  Stevens/Ham (6 Ayes/1 No – Foster) 

 



10 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-49 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET 
ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2018-2019 FISCAL 
YEAR” 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-64 “RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO 
REIMBURSE THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA FROM THE 
PROCEEDS OF THE FINANCING FOR THE WASTEWATER SYSTEM 
IMPROVEMENTS” 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-65 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF 
AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY AND THE WOOTEN COMPANY FOR 
WASTEWATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS” 
 

Budget Amendment – Contracting for Executive Search Services for the 
position of City Manager.  Ordinance Adopted.  As a result of the current City 
Manager’s retirement effective October 1, 2018 with his last day of work on September 
14, 2018, the City Council had begun discussing options regarding how to proceed in 
hiring a new manager.  The City has solicited several consultants for proposals to help 
Council recruit a new City Manager. 
  
The Mercer Group is being recommended to assist Goldsboro with applicants for City 
Manager.  The Mercer Group is familiar with Goldsboro and has facilitated with the 
recruitment of the last two managers.  The contract proposal submitted by The Mercer 
Group reflects $15,400 for professional services and expenses not to exceed $1,500. 
Since funding is not available in the current fiscal year’s budget, the attached budget 
amendment in the amount of $16,900 has been prepared for the Council’s consideration. 
 
It is recommended Council adopt the following entitled Budget Ordinance in the amount 
of $16,900 and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute a contract with The Mercer 
Group in an amount not to exceed $16,900.  Consent Agenda Approval.  Stevens/Ham (6 
Ayes/1 No – Foster) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2018-50 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET 
ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2018-19 FISCAL YEAR” 
 

Formal Bid #2018-003 Award for Police and Fire Department Expansion & 
Renovations to Fire Station #4.  Resolution Adopted.  The City Council instructed 
staff to bid construction of a replacement Dorm building at Fire Station #4, renovations, 
and expansion of the City’s Police and Fire Department.   The City opened the 
construction bids on June 29, 2018.  A bid tabulation is available. 
 
The lowest bidder was KMD Construction at a base bid of $4,775,000.  On July 16, 2018, 
KMD Construction officially withdrew their bid for this project.  The reason stated was 
that the electrical sub-constructor was non-responsive and not financially qualified for 
this project.   
 
The next lowest responsive bidder was Daniels and Daniels at a base bid of $5,426,000.  
The base bid was adjusted for selection of alternates as follows: 
 
  Base Bid:   $5,426,000 
  Alt. #1 Mech. Renov.       160,000 
  Alt. #2 High Density Storage    (185,000) 
  Alt. #3 Tile Change     (    8,000) 
  Alt. #4 Flooring Change    (  15,000) 
  Alt. #5 Replace Roof        243,000 
  New Bid Cost    $5,621,000 
 
Staff met with Daniels and Daniels with adjustments and modifications to several areas 
that included the control cameras, fencing, permit fees, site visits during warranty period, 
owner to provide electrical power, and reduction in general conditions.  These 



11 
 
 

modifications totaled a reduction to the bid of $309,900.  This brings the revised bid costs 
to $5,311,100.   
 
The Local Government Commission approved financing for this project on September 
11, 2018 and loan closed on September 13, 2018.  Loan funding along with existing 
escrow funds for HVAC from previous loan total $5,816,000. There is sufficient funding 
for project and architect fees.  
 
Staff is recommending that Daniels and Daniels be awarded the contract for the Police 
and Fire Department expansion and Renovations to Fire Station #4 at an adjusted bid cost 
of $5,311,100. 
  
It is recommended the City Council adopt the following entitled Resolution authorizing 
the Mayor and the City Clerk to execute a contract with Daniels and Daniels in the 
amount of $5,311,100. Consent Agenda Approval.  Stevens/Ham (6 Ayes/1 No – Foster) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-66 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND 
CITY CLERK TO SIGN A CONTRACT WITH DANIELS AND DANIELS” 
 

Establishing the Capital Projects Fund Ordinance and Budget Amendment – 
Police/Fire Expansion.  Ordinance Adopted.  The City of Goldsboro closed on the loan 
for the construction of a replacement dorm building at Fire Station #4, renovations and 
expansion of the City’s Police and Fire Department on September 13, 2018.  The loan 
proceeds were for $5,300,000 which included the cost of issuance. 
 
The City of Goldsboro must establish a Capital Project Ordinance to allow for the 
construction of this project.  The Capital Projects Ordinance is required to present an 
exact balance of revenues and expenditures, therefore, both project revenue and 
expenditure line items must be established. 
 
Staff recommended Council adopt the following entitled Capital Projects Fund Ordinance 
in the amount of $5,300,000.  Consent Agenda Approval.  Stevens/Ham (6 Ayes/1 No – 
Foster) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2018-51 “AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE POLICE/FIRE 
EXPANSION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS” 
 

Elevate Kidz Fall Fest – Temporary Street Closing Request.  Approved.  The 
First Church is seeking a permit to close First Church Road so that the Elevate Kidz Fall 
Fest can take place on October 31, 2018 from 7:00 am - 9:00 pm.  
 
Due to the logistics of the event and to keep attendees safe, the First Church has 
requested the closing of First Church Road from 7:00 am - 9:00 pm on October 31, 2018.   
 
All vendor booths, entertainment attractions and displays will be arranged to secure 
proper access to all fire hydrants, alleyways and driveways.   
 
Affected city departments will be contacted and the following concerns are to be 
addressed: 
 

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control. 
 

2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained in the center of the street to provide 
access for fire and emergency vehicles. 

 
3. All activities, change in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police 

Department. 
 

4. Police, Fire and Public Works Departments are to be involved in the 
logistical aspects of the event. 

 



12 
 
 

Staff recommended Council grant the requested temporary closing of First Church Road 
for the Elevate Kidz Fall Fest from 9:00 am - 11:00 pm on October 31, 2018.  Consent 
Agenda Approval.  Stevens/Ham (6 Ayes/1 No – Foster) 
 

United Way of Wayne County – 28th Annual Taste of Wayne Event – 
Temporary Street Closing Request.  Approved.  The United Way of Wayne County is 
requesting permission to close a portion of certain City streets beginning at 7:00 a.m. 
until 3:00 p.m. on Saturday, October 13, 2018 to hold their annual Taste of Wayne 
fundraiser. 
 
The street closing request is for the 200 block of North Center Street (between Ash and 
Mulberry Streets), both north and southbound lanes.   
 
Organizers are requesting the street be closed beginning at 7:00 a.m. on Saturday, 
October 13th to allow for setup of the event.  The event itself begins at 11:00 a.m. on 
Saturday, October 13th and will run through 2:00 p.m.  One additional hour of closure 
will allow them time to tear down and clear the street.   
 
The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Development offices have been notified 
of this request. 
 
 Staff recommends approval of this request subject to the following conditions: 
 

1.   All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control. 
2.   A 14-foot fire lane is maintained in the center of the street to provide 

access for fire and emergency vehicles. 
3.   All activities, changes in plans, etc. will be coordinated with the Police 

Department. 
4.   The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Development offices are to 

be involved in the logistical aspects of this event. 
 
Staff recommends Council, by motion, grant the street closings for the 200 block of 
North Center Street from 7:00 a.m. until 3:00 p.m. on Saturday, October 13th for the 
United Way of Wayne County’s Annual Taste of Wayne event, subject to the above 
conditions.  Consent Agenda Approval.  Stevens/Ham (6 Ayes/1 No – Foster) 
 

Monthly Reports.  Accepted as Information.  The various departmental reports 
for August, 2018 were submitted for the Council’s approval.  It was recommended that 
Council accept the reports as information.  Consent Agenda Approval.  Stevens/Ham (6 
Ayes/1 No – Foster) 
 

End of Consent Agenda.   
  
 City Manager’s Report.  Mr. Randy Guthrie stated he just wanted to take a 
moment to say thank you to our city employees for their hard work and dedication and 
long hours during Hurricane Florence.  We had a great response from our employees.  
Mr. Guthrie shared the following: 
 

 The PD/Fire Command Center was activated on Sept. 13th and was manned 24 
hrs. per day in 12 HR Shifts, it was deactivated on September 18th.  During 
Hurricane Florence the MRAP was utilized for high water rescue, patrolling and 
checking areas that are prone to flooding.  From September 14 to September 17, 
while utilizing the MRAP and the LMTV (5 TON TRUCK), Explorer Van and 
Mobile Command Unit, a total of 47 people within the City were escorted from 
their homes or vehicles after calling for help.    

 
 From September 12 through September 21, the Goldsboro Fire Department 

responded to approximately 100 calls for service.  The Fire Department responded 
solely and or provided assistance with 12 Water Rescue calls and rescued 
approximately 20 individuals and 1 pet from immediate danger 

 



13 
 
 

 Public Works collected and hauled approximately 10,000 cubic yards of debris 
(405 loads), jet vac’d and rodded 47 catch basins and the street sweeper has 
swept 23.7 curb miles collecting hurricane debris from city streets. 

 
 Parks and Recreation staff assisted with filling 5000 sandbags to put around town. 

Since September 16th, the Herman Park Center has been the Distribution Center 
for the American Red and the WA Foster Center has been housing/sheltering 
American Red Cross Volunteers overnight. 

 
 Inspections, Engineering and Planning, mapped out, printed and delivered over 

2,000 door hangars to ready those citizens in flood prone areas.   
 

 35 Public Utilities staff worked 3,734 hours and the generator ran 692 hours to 
keep the water plant, wastewater plant and pump stations operational during and 
after the storm.   

 
Mr. Guthrie stated I really appreciate what our staff did and just wanted to highlight a 
few items.   
 Mayor and Councilmembers’ Reports and Recommendations.  Mayor Allen 
read the following Resolutions: 
 

Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Robert (R.T.) 
Smith as an Employee of the City of Goldsboro for More Than 28 Years.  Resolution 
Adopted.  Robert (R.T.) Smith retires on October 1, 2018 as an Assistant Training 
Specialist with the Goldsboro Police Department of the City of Goldsboro with more than 
28 years of service.  R.T. began his career on August 15, 1990 as a Police Officer with 
the Goldsboro Police Department.  On December 10, 1997, R.T. was promoted to 
Evidence Technician with the Goldsboro Police Department.  On July 1, 2005, R.T.’s 
position was reclassified as a Crime Scene Specialist with the Goldsboro Police 
Department.  On October 29, 2014, R.T. was transferred into the position of Assistant 
Training Specialist with the Goldsboro Police Department where he has served until his 
retirement.  R.T. has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who 
gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of 
Goldsboro.  The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf 
of themselves, City employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to 
R.T. Smith their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the 
City over the years.  We offer him our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity 
and good health in his future endeavors. 
 
Upon motion of Mayor Pro Tem Ham, seconded by Councilmember Stevens and 
unanimously carried, Council adopted the following entitled Resolution. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-59 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION 
FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY ROBERT T. SMITH AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 28 YEARS” 
 

Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Earl McIntyre 
as an Employee of the City of Goldsboro for More Than 13 Years.  Resolution 
Adopted.  Earl McIntyre retires on October 1, 2018 as a Police Officer in the Goldsboro 
Police Department of the City of Goldsboro with more than 13 years of service.  Earl 
began his career on December 29, 2004 as a Police Officer with the Goldsboro Police 
Department where he has served until his retirement.  Earl has proven himself to be a 
dedicated and efficient public servant who gained the admiration and respect of his 
fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro.  The Mayor and City Council of 
the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of themselves, City employees and the 
citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Earl McIntyre their deep appreciation 
and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years.  We express our 
deep appreciation and gratitude to Earl for the dedicated service rendered during his 
tenure with the City of Goldsboro.  We offer Earl our very best wishes for success, 
happiness, prosperity and good health in his future endeavors. 
 



14 
 
 

Upon motion of Councilmember Stevens, seconded by Councilmember Broadaway and 
unanimously carried, Council adopted the following entitled Resolution.   
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-60 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR 
SERVICES RENDERED BY EARL MCINTYRE AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY 
OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 13 YEARS” 
 
 Councilmember Williams stated I would just like to thank all of our citizens, city 
employees that worked hard, visitors that worked hard during the hurricane and people I 
called to action to help the community out during the hurricane.  I want to thank some of 
our nonprofits that helped as well. 
 
 Councilmember Broadaway stated I would like to echo Councilmember 
Williams’ comments.  I would also like to thank the churches and also our Public Works 
guys, Fire, everybody for what you did. 
 
 Councilmember Stevens stated I would also like to echo those sentiments.  He 
stated I would like to thank the Fire Chief, the Fire Department for helping people.  
Councilmember Stevens shared Council named the Former WA Foster Center the T.C. 
Coley Community Center.  A grand opening will be scheduled at a later date.  
Councilmember Stevens thanked the Coley family and Mr. T.C. Coley. 
 
 Councilmember Aycock stated I was impressed with the reaction of the Public 
Works, Fire, and Police Departments on the fine work they did.  We learned a lot from 
Matthew.  He stated I hope we do not receive another flood for at least another 100 years.  
 
 Councilmember Foster stated during the storm I received a several phone calls 
from the community regarding supplies needed.  The community really stepped up to 
help.  What I would like to see the Council do, we spend about $4,000 eating before the 
City Council Meetings.  I would like to see that money put towards crisis situations that 
way when a crisis comes up, the shelters aren’t in need, for supplies or food.   
 
Councilmember Foster made a motion to stop feeding ourselves and directors during 
Council meeting and put that money towards crisis situations.  Councilmember Williams 
seconded the motion.  Councilmembers Williams, Foster and Aycock voted in favor of 
the motion.  Mayor Allen, Mayor Pro Tem Ham, Councilmembers Broadaway and 
Stevens voted against the motion.  Motion failed 3:4. 
 
 Mayor Pro Tem Ham stated we were fortunate during Hurricane Florence 
compared to Hurricane Matthew with the destruction we had.  Even with that there were 
people that suffered.  I was out each day after the hurricane passed, visiting the area, 
talking with people and what I observed was people had a good attitude.  I also visited 
Public Works, Police, Fire and spoke with those I saw.  We have a great team of people 
working in this city.  They do an extremely good job in these circumstances.   Mayor Pro 
Tem Ham stated they did a tremendous job.  I commend them. 
 
 Mayor Allen stated I do want to thank the folks from the state, I want to thank 
Duke and most of all our citizens, and our staff; they always do phenomenal work.  I 
want to remind those who suffered through Matthew, we will not forget you.  Following 
up on what Councilmember Stevens said, if you have not seen the T.C. Coley 
Community Center, stop by, it is a nice renovation job.   
 
 There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:24 p.m. 
 
            
        

___________________________ 
       Chuck Allen 
       Mayor 
   
 
       ___________________________ 



15 
 
 

       Melissa Corser, MMC /NCCMC 
       City Clerk  





RESOLUTION NO. 2018-67 

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION 
FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY SALLY JOHNSON  
AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

FOR MORE THAN 42 YEARS 

WHEREAS, Sally Johnson retires on November 1, 2018 as an Executive Assistant with the Planning 
Department of the City of Goldsboro with more than 42 years of service; and 

WHEREAS, Sally began her career on August 18, 1976 as a Secretary with the Planning Department; 
and 

WHEREAS, on June 19, 1985, Sally was promoted to Executive Secretary with the Planning 
Department; and  

WHEREAS, over Sally’s vast career with the City of Goldsboro her position was reclassified as:  
Office Assistant III, Customer Service Representative, and as an Administrative Assistant; and  

WHEREAS, on January 1, 2016, Sally’s position was reclassified as an Executive Assistant where she 
has served until her retirement; and 

WHEREAS, Sally has proven herself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained the 
admiration and respect of her fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of 
themselves, City employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Sally Johnson their deep 
appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by her to the City over the years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina that: 

1. We express our deep appreciation and gratitude to Sally for the dedicated service rendered during
her tenure with the City of Goldsboro and offer her our very best wishes for success, happiness,
prosperity and good health in her future endeavors.

2. This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be
in full force and effect from and after this 15th day of October, 2018.

Approved as to Form Only: Reviewed by: 

_____________________________ __________________________________ 
City Attorney City Manager 

Item B 



D













E













F











G









Item	_________	

CITY	OF	GOLDSBORO	
AGENDA	MEMORANDUM	

October	15,	2018	COUNCIL	MEETING	

SUBJECT:	 Public	Hearing	–	2017‐2018	CAPER	

To	allow	citizens	the	opportunity	to	comment	on	the	City	of	
Goldsboro's	 2017‐2018	 Consolidated	 Annual	 Performance	
and	 Evaluation	 Report	 (CAPER),	 for	 Entitlement	 Grantees	
receiving	Community	Development	Block	Grant	(CDBG)	and	
Home	Investment	Partnership	(HOME)	funds.	

BACKGROUND:	 On	July	1,	2017,	the	City	of	Goldsboro	received	$300,854	in	
CDBG	 funds	 and	 $158,231	 in	 HOME	 funds	 from	 the	
Department	of	Housing	and	Urban	Development	(HUD)	for	
fiscal	 year	 2017‐2018	 to	 administer	 its	 CDBG	 and	 HOME	
program	and	activities	

The	 primary	 objective	 of	 the	 Community	 Development	
Program	 is	 the	 development	 of	 viable	 urban	 communities	
and	 expanding	 economic	 opportunities,	 principally	 for	
persons	of	low	and	moderate‐income	

The	CAPER	provides	 an	 opportunity	 for	 the	City	 to	 assess	
its	 annual	 performance	 and	 to	 discuss	 what	 actions	 or	
changes	 it	 should	 take	 as	 a	 result	 of	 its	 performance.	 	 In	
addition,	 it	 is	designed	 to	provide	 information	on	how	 the	
City	 actually	 used	 its	 entitlement	 funds	 during	 the	 most	
recently	completed	program	year,	July	1,	2017	through	June	
30,	2018.	

DISCUSSION:	 A	fifteen	(15)	day	comment	period	began	on	September	10,	
2018	and	will	end	on	September	24,	2018.		A	public	hearing	
must	 be	 held	 during	 this	 public	 comment	 period.	
Comments	 received	 at	 this	 public	 hearing	 and	 during	 the	
fifteen	 (15)	day	period	will	 be	 incorporated	 as	part	 of	 the	
2017‐2018	 CAPER.	 	 An	 advertisements	were	 published	 in	
the	 Goldsboro	 News	 Argus	 on	 September	 6,	 2018	 and	
October	1,	2018,	relative	to	the	holding	of	a	public	hearing	
and	fifteen	(15)	day	review.			
A	draft	of	 the	2017‐2018	CAPER	has	been	prepared,	made	
available,	and	placed	at	public	access	sites	such	as	the	Desk	
of	 the	 City	Receptionist,	 the	Office	 of	 the	City	 Clerk	 in	 the	
New	 City	 Hall	 Annex,	 200	 North	 Center	 Street,	 in	 the	

H



Community	 Relations	 Offices,	 City	 Hall,	 214	 North	 Center	
Street;	at	 the	Wayne	County	Public	Library,	1001	East	Ash	
Street;	at	the	Goldsboro	Housing	Authority,	1729	Edgerton	
Street,	 Goldsboro;	 and	 on	 the	 City’s	 website	 at	
www.goldsboronc.gov.			

RECOMMENDATION:	 By	 motion	 after	 the	 public	 hearing,	 accept	 the	
recommendation	of	staff	to:	

1. Direct	 the	 staff	 to	 incorporate	 any	 comments	 at	 the
public	hearing	into	the	City's	CAPER;	and

2. Authorize	the	staff	to	submit	any	needs	identified	or
comments	 received	 to	 the	 Department	 of	 Housing
and	 Urban	 Development	 (HUD)	 after	 the	 required
comment	period	has	ended.

Date:		________________________	
Community	Relations	Director	

Date:		_______________________	
Interim	City	Manager	

ssc	



	 	
	

	

City of Goldsboro 
2017- 2018 Consolidated Annual  

Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) 
Synopsis 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
Home Investment Partnership (HOME) 

 

Reporting Period  
July 1, 2017 thru June 30, 2018 



City	of	Goldsboro	‐	2017‐2018	CAPER	 	 	 	 Page	1	

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
The City of Goldsboro (City) submitted its Annual Action Plan for fiscal year 2017-2018 on May 15, 2017 to 
the Department of Housing and Urban Development.  In October 2017, HUD approved the City’s Annual 
Action Plan and Goldsboro was awarded $300,854 in Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and 
$158,231 in HOME Investment Partnership (HOME) funds to perform eligible housing and non-housing 
community development activities for low-to-moderated income citizens of this area.  

The 2017-2018 Annual Action Plan described in detail the housing and non-housing needs of the area, market 
conditions based on the best data available at the time and set forth strategies that established priorities for 
meeting the needs identified.  Additionally, the Plan outlined resources anticipated to be available to address 
priority areas of need and established an Annual Action Plan that identified the intended uses of resources.  
During the past year, 2017-2018, the City used federal entitlement funds to provide decent, safe, and affordable 
housing for low-to-moderate income citizens through housing rehabilitation and homeownership assistance 
programs, provided funds for public facilities and improvements, assisted with public services, and funded after 
school enrichment activities for the City's low-to-moderate income children.  The City of Goldsboro completed 
many of its strategic community goals in program year 2017-2018.  In areas, where goals were not fully 
completed the City has developed plans to address those areas to utilize in the upcoming fiscal year. 

The City of Goldsboro continues to use the HOME allocation to offer homebuyer assistance for first-time 
homebuyers and to expand the affordable housing stock for low-to-moderated income persons and families 
through its designated Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO), Habitat for Humanity of 
Goldsboro-Wayne, Inc. 

SUMMARY OF RESOURCES  

In accordance with 24 CFR Part 21, 220 of Title 1 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as 
amended, the City of Goldsboro’s one year Action Plan outlined the activities that were funded using CDBG 
and HOME funds as well as identify leveraged funds from other sources.  The following funding was available 
to address the goals and objectives in the City of Goldsboro’s Annual Action Plan FY 2017, which were 
implemented between July 1, 2017 and June 30, 2018. 

In FY 2017-2018, the City received $300,854 in CDBG funds and $158,231 in HOME funds.  In addition to 
FY17 allocations, the City had approximately $5,080 in prior year CDBG funds, $74,800 in prior year HOME 
funds, $100,000 in Urgent Repair funds from NC Housing Finance Agency and $150,000 in Essential Single-
Family Rehabilitation Loan Pool – Disaster Recovery Program Funds from North Carolina Housing Finance 
Agency.  The City was granted 100% HOME Match Reduction; therefore, the City was not required to provide 
local matching funds for FY17 HOME allocation.  The City receipted program income of $10,880in CDBG and 
$3,190 in HOME as a result of the repayment of housing rehabilitation loans invested to benefit low-to-
moderated income families in previous years.  The program income was disbursed according to the HUD 
guidelines with program income being disbursed before other funds are used for administrative costs and 
program activities. 

DISTRIBUTION OF FUNDS 

All Community Development funds received by the City of Goldsboro were used on eligible housing and non-
housing community development activities within the City limits of Goldsboro and primarily benefit 



City	of	Goldsboro	‐	2017‐2018	CAPER	 	 	 	 Page	2	

the low-to-moderated income citizens of this area.  Goldsboro's housing and non-housing programs are 
Citywide; however, we are concentrating our efforts on areas needing to receive a very high priority for 
revitalization and the rehabilitation of housing occupied by elderly and handicapped individuals.   

The 2017 census data shows that 42% of the population within the city limits has been identified as low-to-
moderate-income residents (households earning 80% or less than of the Area Median Income of $51,196.  The 
City’s Low/Mod benefit this reporting period was 100%. 

The Community Development Department was able to complete many of its strategic community goals in this 
reporting period.  The City will continue to monitor the market for participation opportunities, particularly in 
the areas of eliminating homelessness and poverty in the community and work with the Down East Coalition to 
Eliminate Homelessness Continuum of Care. 

Program activities projected this reporting period included housing rehabilitation, homebuyer assistance, 
economic development, acquisition, after-school enrichment/public services, CHDO housing construction, 
transitional housing, and public facility improvements. The following table and narratives provide a discussion 
of planned activities, projected expenditures and actual expenditures of funds. 
 
FIVE-YEAR ASSESSMENT OF PROGRESS  

 
Table 1A:  Five-Year Objectives:  Goldsboro Consolidated Plan 2015-2020 
 

 

ACTIVITY

Goals Actual Goals Actual Goals Actual Goals Actual Goals Actual Goals Actual

Housing Rehabilitation 2 1 2 4 2 6 2 2 10 11

Urgent Repair (URP16) 15 13 18 14 18 12 18 18 87 39

Hazardous Material             
(Testing and Monitoring)

15 0 10 0 4 0 4 4 37 0

Homebuyer Assistance 7 3 7 4 9 2 11 14 48 9

Public Facilities and 
Improvements

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 5 3

Public Services 6 6 6 6 2 7 2 2 18 19

Demolition, and Clearance 6 3 6 0 9 0 9 12 42 3

CHDO Activity 3 2 3 2 4 1 4 4 18 5

Economic Development 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 5 3

Westend NRSA 2 0 2 0 3 0 3 3 13 0

Transitional Housing 0 0 1 2 1 3 1 1 4 5

.
Grand Totals 58 30 57 34 54 33 56 0 62 0 287 97

2015       
Year 1      

2018       
Year 4      

2019       
Year 5      

TOTALS
2016       

Year 2      
2017       

Year 3      



City	of	Goldsboro	‐	2017‐2018	CAPER	 	 	 	 Page	3	

 

	



Item_______ 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
OCTOBER 15, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Budget Amendment – IT Equipment  

BACKGROUND: At the August 6, 2018 meeting, the City Council approved 
the installment financing with SunTrust Equipment Finance 
and Leasing Corporation for the installment financing of 
$450,000.  

DISCUSSION: The following are the items included in the lease 
agreement: 

1. Network Equipment for all City Facilities $355,000 
2. UPS Units for all Wiring Closets      7,000 
3. Upgrade Security Systems for City Facilities   16,000 
4. Fiber Trailer 25,000 
5. Message Archiver 7,000 
6. Police Department MDTs    40,000 

Total  $450,000 

The City closed on this lease agreement on September 28, 
2018.  With the lease agreement, the City will need to 
update the budget to reflect the revenues and expenditures. 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the attached ordinance be adopted 
to show an increase in General Fund revenues and an 
increase in the operating expenditures of the Information 
Technology Division’s budget by a total of $450,000. 

Date: ________________ __________________________________ 
Kaye Scott, Director of Finance 

Date: _______________ __________________________________ 
Randy Guthrie, Interim City Manager  

I



ORDINANCE NO. 2018- 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2018-19 FISCAL YEAR 

 WHEREAS, the Goldsboro City Council authorized the installment financing 
with Suntrust Equipment Finance and Lease Corporation to purchase and upgrade the 
City’s network; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro entered into this installment purchase 
financing on September 28, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s budget must be amended to allow for the expenditures and 
escrow funds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro that the Budget Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2018-19 be amended by: 

1. Establishing a revenue line item entitled “Escrow Proceeds - IT” (11-0004-
8974) in the amount of $450,000.

2. Establishing the expenditure line item entitled “Network Equipment” (11-
1030-5219) in the Information Technology’s budget of the General Fund in
the amount of $450,000.

3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the ________
day of ___________________ 2018.

Approved as to form only: Reviewed by: 

_______________________ _______________________ 
City Attorney City Manager 



Item _________ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

OCTOBER 15, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Budget Amendment for Workers’ Compensation Claims 

BACKGROUND: The North Carolina League of Municipalities is currently 
serving as the City of Goldsboro’s third party administrator for 
all workers’ compensation services.  Their primary duty is to 
represent the City of Goldsboro on all official workers’ 
compensation matters.  They also interface with the North 
Carolina Industrial Commission for guidance and final rulings. 

DISCUSSION: The City of Goldsboro has received a large workers’ 
compensation claim.  The City of Goldsboro is self-insured 
and department allocations do not cover these large claims. 
The amount that needs to be appropriated is $200,000.  

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the attached budget ordinance be 
adopted by decreasing the Unassigned Fund Balance of the 
General Fund in the amount of $200,000 and increase the line 
item entitled “Workers’ Compensation” in the Police 
Department’s budget in the amount of $200,000.  

DATE: _________________ __________________________________ 
Kaye Scott, Finance Director 

DATE: _________________ __________________________________ 
Randy Guthrie, Interim City Manager 

J



ORDINANCE NO. 2018- 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE  
CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2018-19 FISCAL YEAR 

 
 

   WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro has contracted with the North Carolina 
League of Municipalities for administration of worker’s compensation services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the North Carolina League of Municipalities is providing leadership 
and guidance in the settlement and the identification of injuries; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro has received a large workers’ compensation 
claim in the Police Department; and 

 
WHEREAS, since the funds were not appropriated  in the operating budget for 

FY 2018-19, the City of Goldsboro needs to appropriate $200,000 in the General Fund. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro that the Budget Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2018-19 be amended by: 
 

1. Decreasing the Unassigned Fund Balance of the General Fund in the amount 
of $200,000. 

 
2. Increasing the line item entitled “Worker’s Compensation” (11-6121-1860) 

 in the Police Department in the amount of $200,000. 
 

3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the ________ 
day of ___________________ 2018. 

 
 
 
Approved as to form only:   Reviewed by: 
 
 
_______________________   _______________________ 
City Attorney     City Manager 
 



ITEM: _______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

OCTOBER 15, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Resolution accepting the State Revolving Fund Loan, 
Increase Capital Projects Ordinance and Budget Amendment 
for Loan Closing Fees 

BACKGROUND: The City of Goldsboro has recognized the need for repairs 
and upgrade of its infrastructure.  The City Council 
authorized staff to move forward with an application for 
the Phase 4 Sewer Collection Rehabilitation Project.  

DISCUSSION: In May 2017, we received notification from the North 
Carolina Department of Environment and Natural 
Resources that financing has been approved from the 
Clean Water State Revolving Fund in the amount of 
$6,268,382 with $500,000 principal forgiveness at a zero 
interest rate over 20 years.  The low bid for the project 
increased the funding by $2,637,294 and the Local 
Government Commission at its September 2018 meeting 
approved the increased loan amount.   

The attached resolution authorizes the Interim City 
Manager to accept the loan amount and directs him to 
furnish all necessary information and assurances required 
to execute the loan closing.  The closing fee for this loan is 
$178,114, which is 2% of the total loan amount 
($8,905,676).  The attached ordinance is necessary to 
appropriate funding for this fee from the Utility Fund. 

Since this project has been increased in the amount of 
$2,637,294, the Capital Projects Ordinance for this project 
should be adopted to represent the increase in expenditures 
and revenues. 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council adopt: 

1. The attached resolution accepting the State Revolving
Loan and authorizing the Interim City Manager to sign
loan documents in the amount of $8,905,676.

2. Adopt the attached ordinance appropriating the closing
loan fee in the amount of $178,114.

K



 
3. Adopt the attached Capital Projects Fund Ordinance in 

the amount of $2,637,294. 
 

 
 

Date: ________________________ ________________________________________ 
     Kaye Scott, Finance Director 
 
 
Date: ________________________ ________________________________________ 
     Randy Guthrie, Interim City Manager 
   
 
 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018- 
 
 

RESOLUTION BY MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO 

 
 WHEREAS, the North Carolina Clean Water Revolving Loan and Grant Act of 
1987 has authorized the making of loans and grants to aid eligible units of government 
in financing the cost of construction of wastewater treatment works, wastewater 
collection systems and water supply systems, water conservation projects, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural 
Resources has offered a State Revolving Loan in the amount of $8,905,676 for the 
Phase 4 Sewer Collection Rehabilitation Project, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro intends to construct said project in 
accordance with the approved plans and specifications. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the  
City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 
 

1. That the City of Goldsboro does hereby accept the State Revolving Loan 
offer of $8,905,676. 

2. That the City of Goldsboro does hereby give assurance to the North Carolina 
Department of Environment and Natural Resources that all items specified in 
the loan offer, Section II-Assurances will be adhered to. 

3. That Randy Guthrie, Interim City Manager, and successors so titled, is 
hereby authorized and directed to furnish such information as the appropriate 
State agency may request in connection with such application of the project; 
to make the assurances as contained above; and to execute such other 
documents as may be required in connection with the application. 

4. That the City of Goldsboro has substantially complied or will substantially 
comply with all Federal, State and local laws, rules, regulations, and 
ordinances applicable to the project and to Federal and State grants and loans 
pertaining thereto. 

5. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this the ____ 
day of __________ 2018. 

 
 
Approved as to Form Only:   Reviewed by: 
 
 
_____________________________  __________________________________ 
City Attorney     City Manager 



ORDINANCE NO. 2018- 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE  
CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2018-19 FISCAL YEAR 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro received notification that the North Carolina 
State Revolving Loan was approved; and 

 
WHEREAS, the closing costs associated with the loan is 2% of the loan amount 

which calculates to $178,114; and 
 
WHEREAS, since the current fiscal year’s budget does not contain sufficient 

monies to meet these obligations, the City of Goldsboro needs to appropriate $178,114 
from the Utility Fund. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro that the Budget Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2018-19 be amended by: 
 

1. Decreasing the Unassigned Fund Balance of the Utility Fund in the amount of 
$178,114. 
 

2. Establishing the line item entitled “Loan Expense” (61-4178-1925) in the 
amount of $178,114 in the Utility Capital Projects Division. 

 
3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the ________ 

day of ___________________ 2018. 
 
 
Approved as to form only:   Reviewed by: 
 
 
_______________________   _______________________ 
City Attorney     City Manager 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2018- 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE PHASE 4 SEWER COLLECTION   
REHABILITATION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

 
  WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro has received approval for the State Revolving 
Loan in the amount of $2,637,294; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Capital Projects Fund Ordinance must be established to allow for 
the expenditure of these funds. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that the Sewer Improvements Capital Project Ordinance be 
recognized by: 
  

1. Establishing the anticipated revenues of the Sewer Improvements Capital Projects 
Fund as follows: 
 State Revolving Loan   $2,637,294 
 
    

2. Establishing the anticipated expenditure line item for the Sewer Improvements 
Capital Projects Fund as follows: 

Construction    $2,637,294 
 
 

3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after this _______ day of 
_________________, 2018. 

 
 
 
Approved as to form only:   Reviewed by: 
 
 
_______________________   _______________________ 
City Attorney     City Manager 
 



Item  ______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

OCTOBER 15, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT:   Resolution for Designation of Applicant’s Agent – 
Hurricane Florence 

BACKGROUND:   On September 14, 2018, the City of Goldsboro had 
damage throughout the City due to Hurricane Florence.   
Wayne  County  was  included  in  a  Major  Disaster 
Declaration related to Hurricane Florence. 

DISCUSSION:  On  October  9,  2018,  the  City  Manager  and  Finance 
Director attended the Public Assistance Applicant Briefing 
to request assistance for Goldsboro.   As the City starts this 
process,  there are  several  forms  that must be completed 
and  a  resolution  designating  the  primary  agents  for  the 
City of Goldsboro.  The attached resolution authorizes the 
City  Manager  and  Finance  Director  as  the  designated 
agents  for  the  City  of  Goldsboro  for  the  purpose  of 
obtaining assistance for expenses and damages associated 
with Hurricane Florence. 

RECOMMENDATION:  It  is  recommended  that  the  attached  resolution  be 
adopted  authorizing  the  City  Manager  and  Finance 
Director  as  the  designated  agents  for  the  City  of 
Goldsboro. 

Date: ____________________________         __________________________________ 
   Kaye Scott, Finance Director 

Date: ____________________________         __________________________________ 
   Randy Guthrie, Interim City Manager 

L





           Item  _  ___ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

OCTOBER 15, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Victorian Mourning Practices – Temporary Street Closing 
Request 

BACKGROUND: The Wayne County Historical Association is requesting 
permission to close a portion of certain City streets beginning at 
6:30 p.m. until 11:00 p.m. on Saturday, October 27, 2018 to hold 
their Victorian Mourning Practices event. 

DISCUSSION: The street closing request is for Chestnut Street between George 
and James Streets.  

The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Development 
offices have been notified of this request. 

Staff recommends approval of this request subject to the 
following conditions: 
1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic

control. 
2. A 14-foot fire lane is maintained in the center of the street to
     provide access for fire and emergency vehicles. 
3. All activities, changes in plans, etc. will be coordinated with

the Police Department. 
4. The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Development
     offices are to be involved in the logistical aspects of this event. 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council, by motion, grant the street closings 
for Chestnut Street between George and James Street from 6:30 
p.m. until 11:00 p.m. on Saturday, October 27th for the Wayne 
County Historical Association’s Victorian Mourning Practices 
event, subject to the above conditions. 

DATE: ____________________ _____________________________________ 
Mike West, Police Chief  

DATE:  ___________________ ______________________________ 
Randy Guthrie, Interim City Manager 

M

















Item _____ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

OCTOBER 15, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Veterans Day Parade and Celebration – Street Closing Request 

BACKGROUND: A request was received from the Wayne County Veterans and Patriots 
Coalition requesting permission to close a portion of certain City 
streets on Saturday, November 10, 2018 from 9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. in 
order to hold a Veterans Day Parade and Celebration. 

DISCUSSION: The street closing request is as follows: 
Parade Route:  Begin on N. Center Street at Spruce Street to the turn 
around on Ash Street, heading back on S. Center Street to Walnut 
Street turn right (east) on E. Walnut Street to James Street, then turn 
left (south) on James Street to Spruce Street turning left (west) and 
ending at S. Center Street and Spruce Street.   

Staging Areas:  Spruce Street from James Street to S. Center Street.   

Additional Closures recommended by the Police Department to 
manage traffic flow:  Center Street from Spruce to Ash; traffic circle at 
Center and Ash Streets; Walnut Street from James Street to Center 
Street; James Street from Walnut to Spruce; Spruce Street from James 
Street to Center Street.      

Line up for the parade will be on South Center Street beginning at 9:00 
a.m. and the parade will begin at 11:00 a.m.  The Police, Fire, Public 
Works and Downtown Development offices have been notified of this 
request. Staff recommends approval of this request subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.
2. A 14-foot fire lane is maintained in the center of the street to provide

access for fire and emergency vehicles.
3. All activities, changes in plans, etc. will be coordinated with the

Police Department.
4. The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Goldsboro offices are

to be involved in the logistical aspects of this event.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council by motion, grant street 
closings on the above mentioned streets on November 10, 2018 from 
9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. in order that the Veterans Day Parade may take 
place, subject to the above conditions. 

DATE: ____________________ _____________________________________ 
Mike West, Police Chief 

DATE: ____________________ _____________________________________ 
Randy Guthrie, Interim City Manager 

N

















Item No. _______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

OCTOBER 15, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Downtown Lights Up! Street Closing Request  

BACKGROUND: Downtown Lights Up! Is an annual holiday event held 
downtown to celebrate the “flipping of the switch” - 
officially beginning the holiday season.  All the decorative 
lights, including those along Center Street, the traffic circle 
Magnolia tree, and the Water Tower are turned on 
simultaneously.  Before conducting this ceremony of lights, 
our Mayor, Santa, the Grinch and children ride a horse-drawn 
trolley down to City Hall to welcome guests. We’re even 
trucking in tons of snow to set the tone for a very festive 
downtown holiday season. 

DISCUSSION: Downtown Development completes the evening by hosting 
an array of free activities, including: holiday entertainment, 
horse drawn trolley rides, Santa Claus, face painting, and 
providing warm beverages and treats.  It is a wonderful time 
of the year for people to experience the warm atmosphere 
and festive activities downtown has to offer.  The majority of 
the event takes place on the front steps of City Hall which 
will provide a natural backdrop for the Mayor when he 
speaks to the crowd wishing them a happy holiday season.  
Ice skating will take place in Cornerstone Commons, and 
trolley rides along Center Street from Mulberry to Chestnut 
St. The NC Symphony performs at 8 p.m. at the Paramount 
Theatre that same evening to continue the holiday 
celebration.  Each year our crowd gets larger and we believe 
this year to be no different with an expected 5000 in 
attendance.     

Due to the logistics of the horse drawn trolley, this event has 
always been promoted as a street fair.  Downtown Development 
is requesting that the 200 block of North Center Street be closed 
from 9:00 a.m. to 8:30 p.m. and the 100 block of South Center 
and the 100 block of North Center be closed from 4:15 p.m. to 
8:30 p.m. to keep our guests safe. 

All vendor booths, entertainment attractions and displays will 
be arranged to secure proper access to all fire hydrants, 
alleyways and driveways. 

  O



 
 As with all Downtown Development events, effected city 

departments will be contacted and the following concerns are 
to be addressed: 

   
1. All intersections remain open for Police Department 

traffic control. 
 

2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained in the center of the 
street to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles. 

 
3. All activities, change in plans, etc., will be coordinated 

with the Police Department. 
 
4. The Police and Fire Departments and Public Works are to 

be involved in the logistical aspects of the Event. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: By motion, grant the requested temporary closing of the 200 
block of North Center Street from 9:00 a.m. to 8:30 p.m. and 
the 100 block of South Center and the 100 block of North 
Center be closed from 4:15 p.m. to 8:30 p.m. to be used for 
activities associated with Downtown Lights Up!, subject to 
the above conditions. 

 
  

 
Date: ________________            ________________________________________ 
   Downtown Development   
    
 
 
Date: ________________   ________________________________________ 
   Interim City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 













Item ______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO  
AGENDA MEMORANDUM  

OCTOBER 15, 2018 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT:         Goldsboro Historic District Commission Appointments 

BACKGROUND: On February 6, 2017, Zachery Lily was appointed to serve 
on the Goldsboro Historic District Commission to his first 
term, which expires on December 31, 2020. Zachery Lily 
has resigned effective September 5, 2018.  

On April 2, 2018, Cortnee Hendrick was appointed to serve 
on the Goldsboro Historic District Commission to her first 
term, which expires on December 31, 2019. Cortnee 
Hendrick has resigned effective September 3, 2018.  

DISCUSSION: The Goldsboro Historic District Commission has 
recommended the current alternates, Alicia Pierce and 
Robert Pinder to fill the unexpired terms left by Zachery 
Lily and Cortnee Hendrick. With these appointments, there 
will be two alternate vacancies on the Historic District 
Commission.    

RECOMMENDATION:         By motion, Council adopt the attached Resolutions:  

1. Appointing Alicia Pierce and Robert Pinder to the
Goldsboro Historic District Commission as full
members.

2. Commending Mr. Zachery Lily and Ms. Cortnee
Hendrick who have served on the Goldsboro Historic
District Commission.

Date: ________________ ____________________________ 
Melissa Corser, City Clerk  

Date:  ________________ ____________________________ 
Randy Guthrie, Interim City Manager  

P



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018- 

 
RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO AN ADVISORY                                  

BOARD AND COMMISSION 
 
 WHEREAS, continued involvement of citizens is vital to the performance of City 
government; and 
 
 WHEREAS, two vacancies currently exists on the Goldsboro Historic District 
Commission; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Goldsboro Historic District Commission has  recommended the 
current alternates, Alicia Pierce and Robert Pinder to fill the unexpired terms left by 
Zachery Lily and Cortnee Hendrick.. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 
 
 1.  The following individuals be and are hereby appointed to the Goldsboro 
Historic District Commission.  The terms shall expire on the dates indicated: 
  
GOLDSBORO HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 
 Filling an Unexpired Term: 
  Alicia Pierce   Term Expires December 31, 2020 

Robert Pinder  Term Expires December 31, 2019 
     
 2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 15th day of 
October, 2018. 
 
 
Approved as to Form Only:                               Reviewed by: 
 
 
 
____________________________             ______________________________ 
City Attorney                                                    City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018 -  

 
RESOLUTION COMMENDING INDIVIDUALS WHO HAVE SERVED  

ON THE GOLDSBORO HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION OF  
THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR ON BEHALF OF 

THE CITY COUNCIL TO PRESENT THE INDIVIDUALS WITH  
A CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION 

 
 WHEREAS, citizen participation is vital to responsible government; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the following individuals have served the local citizenry by their 
service upon the advisory Boards and Commissions of the City of Goldsboro; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council wish to commend these civic-minded 
citizen for their voluntary contributions to the City of Goldsboro.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and the City Council of 
the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that:  
 

1. The following individuals are recognized for their service on the Goldsboro 
Historic District Commission and are commended for their contributions to 
the operation of Goldsboro’s municipal government:  

 
  Goldsboro Historic District Commission 
  Mr. Zachery Lily  

Ms. Cortnee Hendrick  
    

2. The Mayor of the City of Goldsboro is hereby directed to present these 
individuals a Certificate of Appreciation for their civic contributions.  

  
3. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 15th day of 

October, 2018.   
 
 
Approved as to Form Only:     Reviewed by:  

 
 
 

_______________________    _____________________ 
City Attorney       City Manager  
 



Item  _______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

October 15, 2018 – COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT:           Little Washington Growing Group Land Lease Agreement  

BACKGROUND: The Little Washington Growing Group (LWGG) has 
requested vacant lots to use in their programs (their 
programs will use gardening boxes for vegetables that will 
not disturb the existing dirt). The City has reviewed the 
existing Land Lease Agreement and recommends the Land 
Lease Agreement be updated to include the new Parcel ID 
Numbers and the following changes.  The City will require 
the tenant to purchase a general liability policy with 
liability limits of $1,000,000 and list the City of Goldsboro 
as the “additional insured”.    

Parcel ID No.    12-2599-41-9654 – 906 McDaniel Ave. 
              12-2599-41-9546 – 908 McDaniel Ave. 
              12-2599-41-9520 – 910 McDaniel Ave. 
              12-2599-41-9337 – 919 Bethune Ave. 
              12-2599-41-9330 – 921 Bethune Ave. 
              12-2599-41-9235 – 923 Bethune Ave. 

  12-3509-01-7506 – 807 S. Slocumb St.* 
              12-3509-00-6837 – 1005 S. Slocumb St.* 

*These lots are owned jointly with the county and the lease
is subject to Wayne County’s approval. 

DISCUSSION:        It is proposed that the City continue to lease vacant 
property at a cost of $1.00 per year provided LWGG 
maintains the property in an acceptable manner.  The lease 
provides a 60-day cancellation notice by either party.    

RECOMMENDATION:     By motion, accept the recommendation of staff to update 
the Land Lease Agreement and authorize the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute a revised lease adding vacant 
properties to the Little Washington Growing Group.  

Date:_____________          _________________________________ 
Octavius Murphy, Assistant to the City Manager 

Date:_____________   __________________________________ 
Randy Guthrie, Interim City Manager 

Q



NORTH CAROLINA 
WAYNE COUNTY 

THIS LEASE, made this ____ day of ______________, 20__, between CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA, a municipal corporation, party of the first part 
and/or hereinafter identified as Landlord or City of Goldsboro, and 
__________________________, party of the second part and/or hereinafter identified 
as Tenant; 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

That the party of the first part does hereby lease and let to the party of the 
second part, its successors and assigns, all of that certain tract of land situate in 
Goldsboro, Wayne County, North Carolina, and more particularly described as follows:   

SEE EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED HERETO 

1. TERM.  The term of this lease shall be from year to year to be renewed

automatically commencing __________________.   

2. TERMINATION.  This lease may be terminated by either party upon sixty (60)

days' written notice to the other party.  

3. RENTAL.  The rental for said term is $_________________ per year; payable

in one lump sum or payable on a monthly basis in the amount of $____________ per 

month.  

4. PAYMENT OF RENTAL.  The party of the first part acknowledges receipt of

the sum of $_____________ for the yearly rental of the property; or if said payments are 

made on a monthly basis, then a receipt of the said rent paid shall be provided to 

Tenant upon receipt of payment by the Landlord. 

5. VISIBILITY AND APPEARANCE.  The party of the second part shall maintain

said land free and clear of the storage of equipment and signage.  Said land shall only 

be used for gardening purposes.  The party of the second part shall maintain said land 



in a sightly condition and return said land to the party of the first part in a sightly 

condition at the end of this lease.  

6. INDEMNITY.  Landlord and Tenant each indemnifies the other against and

holds the other harmless from any and all costs, demands, damages, suits, expenses, 

or causes of action (including reasonable attorney(s) fees and court costs) which arise 

out of the use and/or occupancy of the Site by the indemnifying party. This indemnity 

does not apply to any claims arising from the gross negligence or intentional misconduct 

of the indemnified party. Except for its own acts of gross negligence or intentional 

misconduct, Landlord will have no liability for personal injury or death, loss of revenue 

due to discontinuance of operations at the Site, or imperfect communications operations 

experienced by Tenant for any reason. The indemnification obligations set forth in this 

paragraph shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease. 

7. ENVIRONMENTAL INDEMNIFICATION.  (a) Tenant, its heirs, grantees,

successors, and assigns shall indemnify, defend, reimburse and hold harmless 

Landlord from and against any and all environmental damages, loss, expenses, and 

costs of responding to, including consulting fees and reasonable attorneys’ fees, or 

liability caused by activities conducted on the Site by Tenant, and (i) arising from the 

presence of any substance, chemical or waste identified as hazardous, toxic or 

dangerous in any applicable federal, state or local law or regulation including petroleum 

or hydrocarbon based fuels such as diesel, propane or natural gas (collectively, 

"Hazardous Materials") upon, about or beneath the Site or migrating to or from the Site, 

or (ii) arising in any manner whatsoever out of the violation of any environmental 

requirements pertaining to the Site and any activities thereon. Tenant covenants that it 



3

shall not nor shall Tenant allow its employees, agents or independent contractors to 

use, treat, store or dispose of any Hazardous Materials on the Site or the Property. (b) 

Landlord acquired the Property by deed on _____________________ and to its 

knowledge has not introduced any hazardous substances to the Property during 

Landlord’s ownership that has resulted in any environmental contamination of the 

Parcel. Landlord is unaware of any investigation, inquiry, or directive of any regulatory 

body related to the use of hazardous substances on or around the Property during its 

period of ownership of the Property. The indemnification obligations set forth in this 

paragraph shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease. 

8. INSURANCE.  (a) Tenant shall carry during the term of this Lease and until all

Equipment is removed from the Site, at Tenant's own cost and expense, commercial 

general liability insurance with a Commercial General Liability Endorsement having a 

minimum limit of liability of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence, with a 

combined limit for bodily injury and/or property damage together with an endorsement 

for contractual liability for any one occurrence; (b) Tenant shall name Landlord as an 

additional insured under Tenant's liability policy, and require Tenant's insurance 

company to agree to give at least thirty (30) days written notice of termination or 

cancellation of the policy to Landlord. A certificate of such insurance, together with such 

endorsement as to prior written notice of termination or cancellation, shall be delivered 

to Landlord within thirty (30) days from the execution of this Lease and before the 

expiration of any term of such insurance from an insurance company authorized to do 

business in the State of North Carolina. (c) Landlord agrees to maintain commercial 



4

general liability insurance in amounts deemed reasonably satisfactory to Landlord and 

which are in amounts consistent with industry practices for the business in which 

Landlord is engaged. Landlord shall have the right to self-insure.  

9. SUBROGATION.  (a) In General. All insurance policies required under this

Lease shall contain a waiver of subrogation provision under the terms of which the 

insurance carrier waives all of such carrier's rights to proceed against Landlord and 

Tenant. (b) Mutual Release. Landlord and Tenant each release the other and their 

respective representatives from any claims by them or any one claiming through or 

under them by way of subrogation or otherwise for damage to any person or to the Site 

and to the fixtures, personal property, improvements and alterations in or on the Site 

that are caused by or result from risks insured against under any insurance policy 

carried by them and required by this Lease, provided that such releases shall be 

effective only if and to the extent that the same do not diminish or adversely affect the 

coverage under such insurance policies. IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, said parties have 

executed this lease in duplicate originals, one of which is retained by each of the 

parties, the day and year first above written.  

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

BY:_____________________________(SEAL) 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
Clerk 



5

Tenant:______________________________ 

By:______________________________(SEAL) 
Position: ______________________  

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WAYNE 

This the ________ day of ______________________, 2009, personally came 
before me, _____________________________, a Notary Public in and for said State 
and County, MELISSA CORSER,  who by me duly sworn, says that she knows the 
common seal of the CITY OF GOLDSBORO and is acquainted with CHUCK ALLEN, 
who is the Mayor of said municipal corporation; that she, the said MELISSA CORSER is 
its Clerk; and that she saw the Mayor sign the foregoing instrument; and that she, the 
said Clerk, saw the said common seal of said corporation affixed thereto, and that she, 
the said Clerk, signed her name in attestation of said instrument in the presence of said 
Mayor of said municipal corporation. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal or stamp this the ______ day of 
_______________, 20__. 

_________________________________ 
_______________________, Notary Public 
Printed Name of Notary 

My Commission Expires:________________ 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WAYNE 



6

This the ______ day of _____________________, 20__, personally came before 
me, ______________________________, a Notary Public in and for the aforesaid 
State and County, ____________________________,  [   ] personally known to me  -
OR-  [   ] proved to me by satisfactory evidence, who being by me duly sworn, says that 
he is the _____________ of _____________________________________, a North 
Carolina corporation, and that by authority duly given and as an act of the corporation, 
the foregoing instrument was signed voluntarily in its name by him as President for its 
stated purpose. 

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal, this the _______ day of 
___________________, 20__. 

_________________________________ 
_______________________, Notary Public 
Printed Name of Notary 

My Commission Expires:________________ 





Item _____ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

COUNCIL MEETING 
OCTOBER 15, 2018 

SUBJECT: Adoption of a Supplement to the Code of Ordinances of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina 

BACKGROUND: In 1990, an agreement was reached between the North 
Carolina League of Municipalities and the City of 
Goldsboro to engage American Legal Publishing Company 
to revise the Code of Ordinances of Goldsboro.  The 
revised Code was published in 1995.  

DISCUSSION: The agreement stated that American Legal Publishing 
Company would prepare supplements for incorporation of 
new Ordinances to the City Code of Ordinances on a 
recurring basis.  In compliance with this agreement, the 
City has received the S-42 Supplement.  This Supplement 
contains all Ordinances of a general nature enacted since S-
41 Code of Ordinances dated April 2, 2018. 

RECOMMENDATION: By motion, adopt the attached Ordinance enacting and 
adopting the 2018 S-42 Supplement to the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Goldsboro. 

Date: ______________ _____________________________ 
City Clerk 

Date: _______________ _____________________________ 
Interim City Manager 

R



ORDINANCE NO. 2018- 

AN ORDINANCE ENACTING AND ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENT 
TO THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 

WHEREAS, American Legal Publishing Corporation of Cincinnati, Ohio, has 
completed the 2018 S-42 Supplement to the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Goldsboro; and 

WHEREAS, said Supplement contains all Ordinances of a general nature enacted 
since the publication of the 2018 S-41 Supplement to the Code of Ordinances of said 
municipality; and 

WHEREAS, American Legal Publishing Corporation has recommended the revision 
or addition of certain sections of the Code of Ordinances which are based on, or make 
reference to, sections of the North Carolina Code. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. It is the intent of the City Council to accept the updated sections of the City Code
of Ordinances in accordance with the changes of the law of the State of North
Carolina.

2. The 2018-42 Supplement to the City Code of Ordinances, as prepared by the
American Legal Publishing Corporation of Cincinnati, Ohio, and as attached
hereto, be and the same is hereby adopted by reference as if set out in its entirety.

3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after this 15th day of
October, 2018.

Approved as to Form Only: Reviewed by: 

_____________________________ _____________________________ 
City Attorney City Manager 

























































































































































































































































































Departmental Monthly Reports 
September 2018 

1. Human Resources
2. Community Relations
3. Paramount Theater-GEC
4. Inspections
5. Downtown Development
6. Information Technology
7. Public Works-Maintenance
8. Public Works-Utilities
9. Finance

10. Planning
11. Engineering
12. Fire
13. Police
14. Parks and Recreation
15. Travel and Tourism

Item S



Human Resources Management Department 
MONTHLY REPORT – SEPTEMBER 2018 

Prepared by:  ctÅxÄt VA _xt~x 
 
 
The Human Resources Department posted 23 job vacancies and processed 230 applications for the month. 151 applicants received notices of 
non-selection for interviews, and seven candidates were interviewed but not selected for hire. Two new hires came on board: one full-time: Ryan 
Fallows – Operator I, Public Utilities (WRF), and one part-time: Cassandra Tyler – Building Attendant, Paramount. There were four 
retirements: Ronnie Barnes, Sr. – Firefighter (Fire); Earl McIntyre – Police Officer (Police); Robert Smith – Assistant Training Specialist 
(Police), and Scott Stevens – City Manager; two resignations: Lewis Pate – Police Officer and Terrance Bunch – Building Attendant 
(Goldsboro Event Center) and one termination: Damien Coley – Building Attendant (Paramount). Total employment for September: 612 
(451 full time and 161 part-time). 21 new hires attended employee orientation on September 5. This was a condensed session since new hires 
also had to attend Customer Service Training at the Event Center. Laura Hamilton, who conducted the sessions in April, returned for two make-
up sessions. HR staff participated in two training sessions this month: A webinar for InRoll – our on-line portal for supplemental benefits, and 
CODa training for Personnel Action Forms. This was a detailed session for HR administrators and other users of the system.  
 
Open enrollment information sessions were held at City Hall, Police Department, and Public Works to review health care benefit options for 2019. 
Additional sessions will be held in October. Open enrollment started September 29 and will end October 31. Employees can select from the 
70/30 plan or the 80/20. They will automatically default to the 70/30 plan and have to complete the tobacco attestation to avoid a $65 charge per 
month. Representatives from Pierce Insurance will conduct open enrollment for supplemental benefits in October. Employees can make 
appointments on-line to meet with staff at City Hall, Fire/Police Headquarters, or the Public Works Complex.   
 
The following is a summary of this month’s safety activities:  

 The safety coordinator presented at New Hire Orientation on September 5. 
 Eastern Carolina Safety and Health Conference meeting was held September 6th in Greenville. 
 Walk-around inspection was performed at Parks & Recreation Maintenance Complex on September 11 (at the request John Albert, 

Parks Superintendent). 
 Safety information concerning hurricane response and recovery was distributed to all city employees on September 11, in preparation 

for Hurricane Florence. Attachments included portable generator safety, chainsaw safety, and safety during disaster recovery.  
 The Safety Accident Review Committee met on September 19th. Three cases (all vehicle accident-related) were scheduled, but only 

one case was reviewed. Committee members were asked to review the Workplace Violence Policy and Bicycle Policy that was sent via 
e-mail. Due to hurricane relief efforts, follow-up and discussion will take place next month (if possible). 

 The Safety Coordinator performed a personal injury investigation at Goldsboro Event Center.  
 A written Job Hazard Analysis is/was required for respective departments, per OSHA standards and regulations. The safety coordinator 

is developing a worksheet to assist Public Works supervisors.  
 Abatement information for several Public Works Departments was submitted to OSHA Safety and Health Consultants (Distribution & 

Collections – September 6, Stormwater and Streets/Storms - September 20, and Solid Waste – September 20, 24).  
 Fall Protection training for Building Maintenance staff was scheduled for October 2 at Public Works Complex. 

 
 
There were 92 clinic visits; no health beat sessions this month. Flu shots were rescheduled to October, due to cancellation of the health fair.  
 

 

2018   Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Avg. 

Applications    264      247  266 204 274  231 398 346  230     273 
New Hires*        9      2     3     2         2       5     7     8   1        4 
Separations*        3          3              3     4     7      3      6     4   5         4 
Vehicle Accidents            3          0           1     3     2      6     8     3   3         3  
Workers Compensation      2     0       3     1     1      2     2     0   0        1 

2017   Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Avg. 

Applications     391       182  269 321   241  316 384 237  206 203 135  104   241 
New Hires*       12           6          1              7              2           3          3             10             3          3              1               6            5 
Separations*       3            0          2              2              3           5          2              2              3          3              2               3            2 
Vehicle Accidents            2            0   3     2        5     4   2    0       1          0              1              3             2 
Workers Compensation      1            0          1              0              1            0          0             0              1          1              2               2            1 
 

*Monthly stats for new hires, resignations, retirements, and terminations include full-time personnel only.                

Random Drug Screens Post-Accident Drug Screens

Non-DOT: 1 drug test - Negative  Non-DOT: None tested  
DOT: 4 drug and 2 breathlyzers – All negative.       DOT: None tested   



  

 

Community Relations Department 
Monthly Report – September 2018 
Prepared By: f{çvÉÄx f|ÅÑáÉÇ@VtÜàxÜ 

 
 The Commission on Community Relations and Development meeting for September 11, 2017 was 

canceled due to Hurricane Florence.   The next scheduled meeting is Tuesday, November 13, 2018 at 
6:00 pm. 
 

 Community Relations received two (2) requests for assistance with resources.  The two (2) requests for 
assistance with resources were for community-based information (i.e., assistance with utilities and 
personal homecare assistances).   
 
For the month of September, the Community Relations Department assisted and/or coordinated 
Hurricane Matthew Relief Efforts throughout the City’s impacted areas.  The Department received and 
responded to many calls or visits from citizens and/or local businesses related to Hurricane Florence.  The 
concerns were referred to the appropriate City departments and external (i.e., EOC, volunteers, local, 
state, and/or federal agencies).   
 

 The Community Relations Department drafted the City’s 2017-2018 Consolidated Annual Performance 
and Evaluation Report (CAPER) for submission to HUD.  This year’s CAPER reports on funds utilized 
to address the goals and objectives in the City of Goldsboro’s Annual Action Plan FY 2017, which were 
implemented between July 1, 2017 and June 30, 2018.  A fifteen (15) day comment period began on 
September 10, 2018 and ended on September 24, 2018 for the CAPER.  The CAPER will be submitted 
to HUD on or before October 26, 2018 after the October 15, 2018 public hearing. 
 

 On August 29th, the City was notified by HUD of the Annual Action Plan receiving approval for a grant 
total of $568,258 for which $339,336 will be CDBG and $228,922 will be HOME funds to administer 
programs/activities in FY18-19.  It should be noted that FY18 funds have not been deposited into the 
City’s Treasury Account (IDIS) as of yet.   
 

 The Goldsboro Mayor’s Youth Council (GYC) met on September 5th for GYC Orientation.  However, the 
GYC regular meeting scheduled for September 19th was canceled due to Hurricane Florence.  GYC 
members volunteered with the Salvation Army of Goldsboro on September 22nd providing Hurricane 
Florence relief for the community.   
 

 The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) met on Thursday, September 27th due to 
Hurricane Florence.  The committee will be hosting the upcoming annual Mayor’s Award Luncheon on 
October 18th at the Goldsboro Event Center at 12:00 pm. 

 
 

Housing 5 5 9 3 2 3 1 3 0 3

Consumer 1 2 0 0 3 2 9 10 2 3

Housing 5 0 5 2 3 1 7 5 1 3 5 7 4

Consumer 2 0 3 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Oct Nov Dec AVGMay Jun Jul Aug Sep2018 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr

Oct Nov Dec AVGMay Jun Jul Aug Sep2017 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr



 
 

     
 

                           Monthly Report- September 2018 
Prepared by:  Sherry Archibald, Director 

 Paramount staff finalized a few additional annual maintenance items including inspections 
and painting the stage. 

 In preparation of Hurricane Florence, staff were brought in to prepare for the storm by 
wrapping all lighting equipment and removing all soft goods from the stage.  Following the 
storm, minimal damage was received with only a few leaks that have been addressed; 
however, most of the scheduled events were rescheduled to later this year and early 2019. 

 The Paramount was utilized as a stating location for the artist during the NC Poultry Festival 
and On Golden Pond was performed as a benefit for the Downtown Goldsboro Development 
Corporation. 

 September Operational Expenses includes $47,000.00 repair and sealant applied to the 
exterior of the building. 

 Paramount staff participated in the following meetings, presentations or training:  Dance 
Touring Initiative Conference Call, Paramount Technicians Meeting, Reading Between the 
Wines Committee meeting, United Way of Wayne County’s Marketing & Board meeting.    

 Expenses –$68,803.15   Labor -  $14,701.73/Operational – $ 54,101.42 
Revenue  - $332.08       Rentals -$250.00 /Tickets $82.08 /Concession $                                             

*August revenue reflects box office fees transferred from 2017/2018 fiscal year.   

 

 The Goldsboro Event Center was utilized for 13 uses in September including a wedding, 
private parties, reunion and golf workshops.   8 of the 13 uses were internal uses; therefore, 
non-income producing.  

 The Goldsboro Event Center experienced some damage during Hurricane Florence.  The 
damage appeared to be a result of roofing issues and leaks causing a portion of the ceiling in 
the dining room to fall.  Public Works has been working with the staff to make repairs. 

 Many of the events at Herman Park Center & WA Foster are being routed to the Event Center 
as both venues are being used for the American Red Cross Hurricane Relief Center. 

 GEC Manager, Ben Farlow is providing daily tours for drop-in guests and contacting future 
renters for confirmation of rental details. 

 Expenses- $7,815.75  Labor -   $5,147.45 /Operational – $2,668.30        
Revenues- $2,143.75 Rentals -$2,143.75/Concessions-  $  

*March 2017 expenses reflect improvements to HVAC system   *October 2017 expense reflects utility bill paid twice 

  Jan‐18  Feb‐18  Mar18  April18  May18  June18  July18  Aug18  Sept18  Oct18  Nov18  Dec18 
Average 

2018 
Total 

Exp  $32,968  $25,012  $48,050  $39,962  $32,137  $24,298  $55,630  $40,550  $68,803        $40,823  $367,410 

Rev  $16,549  $7,471  $35,001  $8,954  $15,408  $11,597  $6,293  $17,910  $332        $13,279  $119,515 

  Jan‐17  Feb‐17  Mar17  April17  May17  June17  July17  Aug17  Sept17  Oct17  Nov17  Dec17 
Average 

2017 
Total 

Exp  $35,209   $28,009   $42,454  $25,801  $31,732  $18,825  $39,124  $23,925  $31,356  $44,428  $54,422  $32,621  $33,992  $407,906 

Rev  $12,929    $13,197   $21,544  $3,845  $22,670  $5,648  $6,097  $18,040  $3,454  $21,841  $17,422  $24,984  $14,305  $171,671 

  Jan‐18  Feb‐18  Mar18  April18  May18  June18  July18  Aug18  Sept18  Oct18  Nov18  Dec18 
Average 

2018 
Total 

Exp  $5,379  $7,310  $14,096  $14,484  $7,852  $7,072  $9,083  $11,367  $7,815        $9,384   $84,458  

Rev  $2,890  $5,556  $7,526  $15,201  $9,980  $4,309  $7,971  $7,131  $2,143        $6,967  $62,707

  Jan‐17  Feb‐17  Mar17  April17  May17  June17  July17  Aug17  Sept17  Oct17  Nov17  Dec17 
Average 

2017 
Total 

Exp  $7,619  $6,442  $50,093  $8,627  $14,882  $9,201  $12,472  $8,056  $9,183  $17,808  $9,840  $14,042  $14,022  $168,265

Rev  $2,100  $7,096  $8,792  $6,826  $15,356  $5,077  $9,924  $8,073  $6,221  $5,052  $13,174  $7,788  $7,956  $95,479 



 
Goldsboro Inspections Department 

Monthly Report – Sept 2018 
Prepared by:  Allen Anderson 

 
 

The valuation of all building permits issued during the month of September totaled $2,566,590.  
One (1) of these permits were new residential single-family dwellings at a valuation of 
$120,000. 
 
The valuation of all miscellaneous (Mechanical, gas, insulation, electrical, plumbing, fire, 
sprinkler, pool, tank, demolition, signs, business inspection, & itinerant merchant) permits 
issued during this time period totaled $1,026,693. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $20,624.  Of the permit fees collected for the 
month, $2,370 was collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month 
totaled $1,625. Business Registration fees collected $1,440. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 345 inspections for the month.  During the month of September six 
(6) business inspections were completed.  A total of 279 permits were issued for the month.   
Fifty-one (51) plan reviews were completed for September. We now have a total of 161 
residential structures in the Minimum Housing Process and 10 commercial structures in the 
Demolition by Neglect Process. 
 
 
  
2018  Jan  Feb  Mar  Apr  May  Jun  Jul  Aug  Sep  Oct  Nov  Dec  AVG 

Permit Valuation 

All Buildings (millions)  $10  $13  $3 $5 $5 $2 $5 $6 $3    $6 
Residential (thousands)  $848  $518  $1345 $786 $1389 $1589 $1000 $1734 $120    $1,036 
Miscellaneous**(millions)  $2   $2  $2 $3 $2 $1 $2 $2 $1    $2 
Permit Fees (thousands)  $31  $33  $30 $31 $48 $51 $65 $60 $21    $41 
Inspections (total)  524  539  544 564 582 692 675 659 345     569 
Permits Issued (total)  258  263  284 295 418 351 344 373 279    318 
Plan Reviews Completed  75  41  52 74 85 39 42 67 51    58 
Minimum Housing in Process  163  163  143 152 152 152 161 161 161    156 
 
 
                           

2017  Jan  Feb  Mar  Apr  May  Jun  Jul  Aug  Sep  Oct  Nov  Dec  AVG 

Permit Valuation                
All Buildings (millions)  $11   $2  $5 $33 $9 $3 $3 $7 $23 $3 $2 $2 $9 
Residential (thousands)  $473   $442  $1m $1m $2m $1m $451 $0 $1m $2m $0 $39 $784 
Miscellaneous**(millions)  $5   $1  $6 $9 $2 $2 $1 $8 $10 $4 $1 $1 $4 
Permit Fees (thousands)  $31   $29  $31 $46 $35 $46 $42 $50 $51 $43 $25 $23 $38 
Inspections (total)  836  747  775 539 623 610 560 674 621 623 568 431 634 
Permits Issued (total)  384  350  353 297 383 339 303 353 263 307 246 197 315 
Plan Reviews Completed  43  57  59 57 79 64 53 51 56 70 52 44 57 
Minimum Housing in Process  194  190  197 195 198 182 177 178 182 172 155 155 181 

 



 
 

 

Downtown Development Department 
September 2018                               Prepared By:  Julie Metz, Director 
 
Current Downtown Development Office Projects Staff Worked On Over the Month Include:  

 Staff continued to work through TIGER VIII developments and reviewed Wayfinding bid packages. Five 
candidates were selected for progression to next phase: Project Bid. 

 Staff met with (or conversed by email/phone) with 18 potential new property acquisition projects/persons 
and/or business interests regarding downtown. 

 Staff met with and visited 45 current business owners during the month. 
 Julie continued to work on strategic planning and attended several meetings throughout the month. 
 Staff worked through activities related to the Union Station roof replacement. 
 Staff facilitated the first wedding and reception for Say I Do to Downtown on September 29th. 
 Staff completed the nomination process for the 2019 NC Main Street Awards. 

 
Downtown Development Office Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  

 Staff created ads for Go, Buzz, WGBR, 107.9, digital billboards and News‐Argus for upcoming city and DGDC 
events and filmed WGTV and WRAL segments. 

 Staff attended multiple Merchants Association meetings throughout the month. 
 Staff facilitated the Poultry Festival in downtown Goldsboro on September 7th and 8th. 
 Staff organized the Kiss the Pig fundraiser for the Boys & Girls Club, which concluded on September 8th and 

raised $4,000.00 for the Boys & Girls Club of Johnston/Wayne Counties.  
 The DGDC acquired an option on 209 W. Walnut St. and Staff hosted a Property Preview Event on September 

10th. 
 Staff attended a Goldsboro Streetscape Progress meeting on September 11th. 
 Staff attended the Economic Outlook Luncheon on September 12th. 
 Erin presented at the Newcomer’s Orientation at SJAFB on September 18th. 
 Staff attended the Chamber After Hours event on September 20th. 
 Staff attended the Poultry Festival Wrap‐Up meeting on September 25th. 
 Staff attended a Workforce Development Work Group meeting on September 26th. 
 Staff attended the Base Community Council on September 27th. 
 Staff attended a Business Development meeting at the Chamber of Commerce on September 27th. 
 Staff met with a representative from NC Works on September 28th. 

 
DGDC Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  

 The regular DGDC committee and board meetings were cancelled due to the hurricane. 
 Staff helped coordinate volunteer efforts for On Golden Pond, performances on September 28th, 29th, and 30th. 
 Staff continued coordination efforts for the upcoming Annual Dinner, rescheduled to October 19th. 
 Staff began planning for the annual Board Retreat, scheduled for October 24th and 25th. 

 
Upcoming Events/Activities:  

 The Firehouse Ribbon Cutting on October 4th at 4:30 p.m. 
 The Firehouse Open House on October 11th from 5:30 p.m. – 8:30 p.m. 
 DGDC Annual Dinner on October 19th from 6:30 p.m. – 8:45 p.m. 
 Public Art Installation Ceremony on October 12th at 12:00 p.m. 
 Taste of Wayne County on October 13th from 11 a.m. – 1:30 p.m. 
 DGDC Annual Board Retreat on October 24th and 25th. 
 Thriller Night on October 26th from 5‐8 p.m. 
 The Creepy Crawl on October 26th at 8:00 p.m. 
 12th Annual Really Chili Challenge on October 27th from 11 a.m. ‐ 2 p.m. 

 
Businesses Opening/Properties Purchased: 

 Artistic Dance Academy – 228 N. Center Street – Now Open 
 Barrique‐ 217 N. John Street‐ Now Open 
 RYE Always Fresh‐ 108 E. Mulberry Street‐ Now Open 
 MissPriss‐ 138 N. Center Street 



Information Technology 
Monthly Report – September 2018 

Prepared by: Patricia Wischmann 
   

 Continue to provide support for QS/1 software monthly training and system configuration for our 
planned migration in December. 

 Conducted Personal Action Form training for CoDa. This covered staff in Human Resources as well as 
other departments. 

 Set up storage in basement of Historic City Hall for records and provided a space for IT surplus item 
storage. 

 Set up camera to monitor major intersection traffic cams. Gave access to video feed to emergency 
services, Wayne County Emergency Operations Center, and City Emergency Operations Center. 

 Tested and verified back up and replication of city’s servers, databases and email. 
 Prepared laptops for use in the event of damage to City facilities that required the relocation of staff. 
 Prepared phones for possible FEMA use in response to Hurricane Florence. 
 Set up Hotline numbers for Public Works and Inspections to provide information to public more readily 

after the storm.  
 Informed departments in flood prone areas how to prepare their equipment and avoid damage in the 

event of minor flooding.  
 Replaced computers in the HPC Senior House Computer Lab.  
 Set up command post for the City Emergency Operations Center. Installed TV’s, Coax cables, and 

monitors. Installed backup batteries at the command post to ensure uninterrupted service during the 
transition to the generator when power failed.  

 Setup the IT Training room for use as a temporary office for staff from the Water Reclamation Facility 
due to flooding at their offices. 

 Performed drone flights to access the damage and flooding from Hurricane Florence at Cemetery, Bryan 
Multi-sports Complex, Golf Course, Cherry Pump Station, Neuse River intake structure, and Wayne 
Memorial Greenway. 

 Repaired the HVAC mini-split in the IT server room at the Goldsboro Police Department.  

 

2017 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

                            

Tickets 
Opened 

492 427 530 357 349 410 367 538 403 520 461 401 439 

Tickets 
Closed 

483 448 492 344 326 401 356 543 409 470 427 380 427 

2018 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
                            

Tickets 
Opened 

578 535 568 494 408 458 494 572 538    516 

Tickets 
Closed 

504 544   648 496 389 468 451 656 514    519 



September 2018 Monthly Report PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT By  Richard E. A. Fletcher III

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

7.4 2.9 4.0 24.0 19.0 26.3 77.5 13.2 12.8 20.8
5.1 3.3 4.6 9.5 12.5 10.3 9.3 13.2 7.3 8.3
87 25 25 45 47 64 71 34 21 46.6
4 14 9 12 20 13 17 14 8 12.3
3 32 38 45 42 23 30 26 32 30.1

25 32 28 36 49 76 60 61 87 50.4

225 195 167 224 268 204 158 150 127 190.9
43 72 51 70 13 77 36 61 28 50.1

360 341 322 366 337 316 299 362 313 335.1
55$      47$      55$      55$      60$      60$      60$      70$      52$      57.1

0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.9
102 107 82 101 59 93 79 94 111 91.8
0.5 0.7 0.8 1.1 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.8 2.0 1.0

8 9 6 8 5 6 6 6 7 6.8

0 14 10 12 30 37 23 11 4 15.7
45 82 50 20 45 25 61 43 14 42.8

82.5 229 171 229 197 143 192 145 198 176.3
0 0 3 8.0 68.9 167.0 16.6 29.0 48.0 37.8
0 0 0 135 318 410 159 187 110 146.6

33.5 28.0 35.9 21.4 21.3 7.6 6.1 32.7 19.2 13.4 11.1 12.8 20.3
4.5 17.5 6.3 10.7 15.2 8.1 12.5 11.1 12.3 12.3 13.3 6.5 10.9
42 20 27 35 28 28 20 30 22 23 39 29 28.6
55 48 105 100 90 19 14 26 39 12 9 5 43.5
24 18 64 53 38 24 45 32 58 38 40 8 36.8
48 37 43 19 55 41 18 34 20 42 34 18 34.1

164 108 136 137 156 155 126 174 176 128 183 117 146.7
65 96 61 46 70 75 72 33 53 91 25 28 59.6

334 320 387 304 277 299 292 415 280 370 290 260 319.0
57$      51$      56$      49$      55$      58$      50$      68$      58$      60$      54$      41$      54.8

0.9 0.7 0.9 0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.81 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.9
70 86 83 107 116 88 81 117 110 106 88.5 111 97.0
0.7 0.8 0.9 0.8 1.0 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.87 0.81 1.04 1.16 0.9

3 6 3 5 6 2 8 5 6 3 5 5 4.8

15 25 11 13 5 17 24 17 13 6 13 15 14.5
57 42 52 48 57 24 72 64 46 95 41 10 50.7

144 113 110 60.5 246 128 142 65 93.6 155 160 132 129.1
0 0 0 16.0 28.0 8.0 23.5 12.0 5.0 26.0 36 0 12.9
0 0 0 101 123 211 266 182 190 175 72 0 110.0

Water Repairs

Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 &
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)

Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 &
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)

Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs

Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed

Meter Install/Changed

Garage
Total Work Orders

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed

Meter Install/Changed

Bldg 

Maint.

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 

Sign Repairs

Solid 

Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
s 

&
 

St
o

rm
w

at
e

r Utility Cut Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs

Streets Swept (miles)

2018

Bldg 

Maint.

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 

Sign Repairs

Garage
Total Work Orders

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 

Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

2017

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

e
ts

 &
 

St
o

rm
w

at
e

r Utility Cut Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs

Streets Swept (miles)

ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing

D&C: Responded to 41 after hour calls for a total of 72 hours. 
Streets & Storms: Constructed berms to protect the Water Treatment Facility during Hurricane Florence.  Key players in 
post hurricane recovery efforts—removal of 15K+ cubic yards of vegetative debris and streets open within days after 
hurricane. Jet Vac'd and cleared 90+ catch basins, rodded 3,543 linear feet of pipe, and repaired four stormwater 
infrastructure cave-ins. 
Bldg. Maintenance:  Set up for two Center Street Jams, assisted in the Poultry Fest event, assisted with Hurricane 
preparations and post storm response—filled sand bags, cleaned catch basins and assembled 10 generators for stop lights 
at major intersections.  In-house capabilities extended—replaced transformer at WTP and installed new HVAC in the Traffic 
Signal and Sign Shop modular unit.  
Solid Waste: Spearheaded post Hurricane storm clean up and vegetative debris removal efforts. 



Public Utilities Department 
 

Monthly Report-  
September 2018 

 

Prepared by: Michael Wagner 
 

Water Reclamation Facility 
 
Water Reclamation Facility operations are proceeding smoothly. The 
average daily flows for September were 17.46 MGD due to excessive 
rainfall from Hurricane Florence and resulted in a violation.  All of the city’s 
26 pump stations are operating well. Overall, there are several repairs due 
to the rain, wind and flood, but we are in much better shape than after 
Hurricane Matthew.  
 
Water Treatment Plant 
 
The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. There are roof 
and structural damage from Hurricane Florence, but nothing has influenced 
plant operations.   
 
Compost Facility 
 
One hundred and fifty-seven cubic yards of compost/mulch was sold in 
September 2018. Hurricane Florence was a major impact on sales this month.  
 
Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day 
(MGD) and are average daily flows for each month. 
 

2018 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 6.625 6.232 6.262 6.017 6.303 6.83 6.632 6.727 6.149    6.419 

Sewer** 7.66 10.45 9.97 9.41 10.77 7.83 6.71 11.50 17.46    10.19 

CY 
Compost 

395 876 686 913 951 910 220 604 157    634 

*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 

 
2017 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 5.092 4.974 4.509 4.836 5.080 5.088 5.731 5.403 5.312 5.261 5.024 5.500 5.151 

Sewer** 10.44 8.47 8.21 10.25 12.35 9.06 6.97 6.85 8.41 7.16 6.49 7.24 8.49 

CY 
Compost 

54 546 845 1484 923 836 496 394 538 564 86 104 572 

*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 



Prepared	by:		Kaye	Scott,	Finance	Director

Actual Adjusted Budget Actual to Date YTD %
Revenues FY '17-18 FY '18-19 FY '18-19 Collected

Tax Revenues 1,984,964$    16,432,843$          680,601$           4.14%
License & Permits 111,054        382,650                109,716             28.67%
Revenue Other Agencies 7,107,095      18,577,389            4,682,816          25.21%
Charges for Services 1,182,016      5,220,718              1,233,818          23.63%
Capital Returns 31,740          525,384                131,823             25.09%
Miscellaneous Revenues 69,473          1,201,500              93,144               7.75%
FB Withdrawal/PO Appropriation 1,321,417              
     Total 10,486,342$  43,661,901$          6,931,918$        15.88%

Actual Adjusted Budget Actual to Date YTD %
Departmental Expenditures FY '17-18 FY '18-19 FY '18-19 Collected

Mayor/Council 121,688$       347,375$               89,162$             25.67%
City Manager 230,915 1,404,615 287,705 20.48%
Human Resources Management 170,470 596,154 175,080 29.37%
Community Relations 67,603 161,085 99,353 61.68%
Paramount Theater 94,407 508,333 164,985 32.46%
Goldsboro Event Center 29,712 143,890 28,267 19.64%
Inspections 193,537 831,196 164,905 19.84%
Downtown Development 86,712 457,448 88,949 19.44%
Information Technology 306,816 1,711,817 377,764 22.07%
Public Works - Adm. 108,534 473,747 131,824 27.83%
Garage 557,741 2,308,330 656,111 28.42%
Garage Credits (306,395) (1,680,000) (301,093) 17.92%
Building & Grounds 162,265 771,779 165,138 21.40%
Cemetery 91,910 329,995 79,813 24.19%
Finance 255,482 1,312,841 252,568 19.24%
Office Supplies Credits (1,339) (9,000) (1,322) 14.69%
Planning & Redevelopment 352,074 1,530,223 355,886 23.26%
Postage Credits (6,375) (30,000) (3,864) 12.88%
Streets & Storms - General 569,856 1,097,628 216,512 19.73%
Streets & Storms - Utilities 154,225 732,507 130,002 17.75%
Street Paving 0 0.00%
Solid Waste 706,535 2,927,194 808,177 27.61%
Engineering 278,699 995,111 228,459 22.96%
Fire Department 1,731,126 6,220,985 1,773,490 28.51%
Police Department 2,497,206 10,090,214 2,736,082 27.12%
Special Expense Fees 4,005,649 5,803,162 840,317 14.48%
Parks & Recreation 928,736 3,766,154 1,177,666 31.27%
Golf Course 201,886 859,120 376,294 43.80%
     Total 13,589,675$  43,661,901$          11,098,230$      25.42%

Finance	Department
				Monthly	Report	‐	September	2018

FY 2018-19
GENERAL FUND



Actual Adjusted Budget Actual to Date YTD %
Revenues FY '17-18 FY '18-19 FY '18-19 Collected

Charges for Services 3,991,330$    16,778,500$          4,216,489$        25.13%
Capital Returns 7,397            37,900                  15,857               41.84%
Miscellaneous Revenues 456,035        4,417,009              2,304,147          52.17%
FB Withdrawal/PO Appropriation -$                  1,708,064$            0.00%
     Total 4,454,762$    22,941,473$          6,536,493$        28.49%

Actual Adjusted Budget Actual to Date YTD %
Departmental Expenditures FY '17-18 FY '18-19 FY '18-19 Collected

Distribution & Collections 689,030$       3,595,982$            669,105$           18.61%
Water Treatment Plant 1,070,093      6,024,071              1,234,597          20.49%
Water Reclamation Plant 1,140,251      7,437,465              1,368,575          18.40%
UF - Capital 1,059,950      4,754,551              2,075,575          43.65%
Compost Facility 198,420        1,129,404              352,641             31.22%
     Total 4,157,744$    22,941,473$          5,700,493$        24.85%

Actual Adjusted Budget Actual to Date YTD %
Revenues FY '17-18 FY '18-19 FY '18-19 Collected

Tax Revenues 5,681$          72,155$                3,883$               5.38%
Capital Revenue 91                 315                       569                    180.63%
FB Withdrawal/PO Appropriation 15,366                  
Total 5,772            87,836                  4,452                 5.07%

Actual Adjusted Budget Actual to Date YTD %
Departmental Expenditures FY '16-17 FY '17-18 FY '17-18 Spent

Downtown District 4,457$          87,836$                12,232$             13.93%
     Total 4,457$          87,836$                12,232$             13.93%

Actual Adjusted Budget Actual to Date YTD %
Revenues FY '17-18 FY '18-19 FY '18-19 Collected

Occupancy Tax/Civic Center 180,773$       690,000$               176,594$           25.59%
Occupancy Tax/Travel & Tourism 45,193          170,000                44,265               26.04%
County of Wayne Occupancy Tax 50,222          170,000                71,732               
Capital Returns/Misc./Property Sale 1,307$          1,050$                  58,180$             0.00%
FB Withdrawal/PO Appropriation 149,184$               
     Total 277,495$       1,180,234$            350,771$           29.72%

Actual Adjusted Budget Actual to Date YTD %
Departmental Expenditures FY '17-18 FY '18-19 FY '18-19 Collected

Civic Center 388,384$       818,261$               215,491$           26.34%
Travel & Tourism 102,223        361,973                119,068             32.89%
     Total 490,607$       1,180,234$            334,559$           28.35%

OCCUPANCY TAX FUND

STORMWATER FUND

UTILITY FUND

DOWNTOWN DISTRICT FUND



Actual Adjusted Budget Actual to Date YTD %
Revenues FY '17-18 FY '18-19 FY '18-19 Collected

Stormwater Fee 81,903$        1,504,000$            353,953$           23.53%
FB Withdrawal/PO Appropriation 10,861                  
Total 81,903          1,514,861              353,953             23.37%

Actual Adjusted Budget Actual to Date YTD %
Departmental Expenditures FY '17-18 FY '18-19 FY '18-19 Spent

Stormwater Division 52,920$        1,514,861$            198,131$           13.08%
     Total 52,920$        1,514,861$            198,131$           13.08%





 

 
 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
MONTHLY REPORT – SEPTEMBER 2018 

 
 
Prepared by:        Guy M. Anderson, P. E.  
 
Stoney Creek Greenway   

 Staff is awaiting right of way certification form from NC Department of Transportation; 
 The design process is 85% complete. 

 
Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation  

 T. A. Loving Company submitted the low bid of $8,344,167.30 at the bid opening held on July 3, 2018; 
 Council awarded contract to T. A. Loving Company on July 16th contingent upon approval of additional 

State Revolving Loan funding; 
 Additional funds have been approved by Local Government Commission and the Division of Water 

Infrastructure; 
 Preconstruction meeting was held on September 19, 2018 with a notice to proceed date set for November 1, 

2018; 
 Contract completion date is November 26, 2019. 

 
Center/Holly Street Water Tank Painting  

 Bids received were over budgeted amount due to lead paint issue; 
 Staff is coordinating having a lead paint evaluation performed; 
 Project anticipated advertising in November 2018. 

 
SJAFB Sewer Outfall Improvements   

 Staff is preparing design plans and bid documents to replace the sewer line from SJAFB to the Stoney 
Creek Sewer Outfall; 

 The design process is 50% complete; 
 Anticipated bid advertisement is November 2018. 

 
Glenwood Trail Storm Drain Replacement Project  

 Contract is 10% complete; 
 Contract completion date is December 24, 2018; 
 A $285,000 Golden Leaf Foundation Grant provides funding for this project. 

 
2018 Street Improvement Project  

 Field survey work is complete and the design phase is in progress for this paving project pertaining to Oak 
Hill Drive from North Berkeley Boulevard to Green Drive and East Chestnut Street from South Slocumb 
Street to South Leslie Street; 

 Design phase is 95% complete; 
 The City Attorney is coordinating the acquisition of the required additional right of way. 

 
2018 Street Resurfacing  

 Turner Asphalt submitted the low bid of $2,627,358.15 at the bid opening held on August 21, 2018; 
 Council awarded contract to Turner Asphalt  on September 4th; 
 A preconstruction meeting is scheduled for October 24, 2018. 

 
Beech Street Sanitary Sewer Improvements  

 Staff is evaluating if this project can be amended to the Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation Project 
(CWSRF). 

 
Best Management Practices (BMPs) Inspections   

 Approximately 300 BMPs have been approved and 254 BMPS have been constructed to date; 
 All BMP inspections have been completed through the month September 2018. 



Goldsboro Fire Department  
Monthly Report – September 2018 

 

Page 1 of 1 – September 2018 Monthly Report  

Report Prepared By: ]ÉáxÑ{ W|åÉÇ JD/CL 
 
 

Fire Prevention and Outreach 
 9/5 – Community Service - Car Seat Safety Check  
 9/6 – Community Outreach – Center Street Jam – John Street 
 9/8 – Public Education - Poultry Festival - Downtown Goldsboro 
 9/18 – Public Education - Engine 2 
 9/27 – Public Education - Peggy M. Seegars Senior Center 
 9/29 – Fire Truck Display - Community Day Event - Upper Room Church of Deliverance 

 
 

Working Structure Fires 
 9/3 - 713 Rudolph St.  
 9/15 - 414 Creech St. 
 9/18 - 107 S Georgia Ave. 
 9/23 - 611 E Elm St # C 

 
 

Working Vehicle Fires 
 9/19 - 1301 Wayne Memorial Dr. 
 9/26 - 901 W Grantham St.  
 9/27 - 305 Forest Dr. 
 9/28 - 207 E Ash St.  

 

 
 
 
 
 

2018 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg.
Total Incidents: 234 165 196 197 208 182 195 229 375 220
Structure Fires: 3 6 2 2 6 2 1 2 4 3

EMS Calls: 63 52 63 68 89 69 71 87 138 78
Vehicle  Accidents: 49 22 39 27 38 34 38 31 36 35

Fire Alarms: 49 34 44 35 38 38 47 59 80 47
O ther: 70 51 48 65 51 39 38 50 117 59

Training Hours: 2683 2871 2149 2172 1962 1878 2776 3228 1465 2354
Safety Car Seat Checks: 2 10 10 9 10 4 3 8 3 7

Inspections: 52 67 68 95 102 106 99 142 64 88
2017 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg.

Total Incidents: 268 227 226 206 212 194 204 177 210 218 192 204 212
Structure Fires: 3 4 6 2 2 3 4 4 0 4 4 7 4

EMS Calls: 112 100 99 84 71 69 70 65 86 88 52 79 81
Vehicle  Accidents: 33 35 40 35 38 37 29 27 34 43 38 40 36

Fire Alarms: 53 35 38 36 43 43 55 42 43 36 36 32 41
O ther: 67 53 43 49 58 42 46 39 47 47 62 46 50

Training Hours: 3209 2870 3457 2153 2001 2020 1532 1686 1587 2496 1939 1286 2186
Safety Car Seat Checks: 6 16 10 8 12 11 5 13 53 6 2 6 12

Inspections: 31 57 53 56 113 120 99 113 70 51 63 37 72

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, 
Haz-Mat Calls, Grass Fires and Unauthorized Burning.





GOLDSBORO PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT – September 2018  
Prepared by:  W. Scott Barnard SB/FLB/JS 

Goldsboro Parks & Recreation hosted the NC Poultry Festival with over 10,000 guest throughout the entire event.  The GMGC purchased 50 new golf carts for patrons use.  
Due to Hurricane Florence, HPC and WA Foster have been used by the American Red Cross. 

 

 

2018  JAN  FEB  MAR  APR  MAY  JUN  JUL  AUG  SEP  OCT  NOV  DEC 
AVG Herman Park and 

W A Foster Centers           

Program Revenue  $3,906  $3,821  $2,091  $3,153  $2,899  $12,306  $18,807  $8,450  $815  $  $  $ 
$6,250

Rental Revenue   $1,610  $1,385  $4,572  $3,927  $2,625  $2,647  $3,660  $4,660  $2585   $   $   $ 

$3,075

Facility Usage  11,813  10,235  11,470  13,633  10,862  10,576  9,700  9,415  5724         

10,381

                 

Specialized Rec. 
and Senior Citizens, 
Pools                 

Program Revenue  $191  $264  $311  $231  $850  $10,281  $6,354  $3,621  $838.50  $   $  $  $2549 

Facility Usage  5,890  2,220  1,616  3,107  3,662  6,369  4,840  2,689  1090         3,498 

                 

Athletics and Field 
Picnic Shelters, 
MSCX                 

Program Revenue  $1,500  $2,430  $1,560  $195  $920  $3,880  $2,197  $2,960  $0   $   $   $  $1,738 

Field/Shelter Rental  $0  $60  $0  $1,165  $1,250  $1,480  $1,120  $,1310  $1410   $   $  $  $866 

Facility Usage  3,459  9,382  3,605  5,315  9,725  4,867  7,890  9100  13,275         7,402 

                 

Golf Course                 

Revenues  $44,090  $30,092  $30,483  $64,936  $38,070  $47,941  $58,197  $36,486.74  $29,770.64  $  $  $  $42,230 

Expenditures  $44,811  $60,293  $49,545  $56,766  $103,701  $56,726  $61,129  $74,147.76  $241,017.22  $  $  $  $83,126 

                 

Special Events                 

Sponsorships  $1,500  $0  $  $200  $225  $200  $1,012  $0  $32,100    $  $  $4,405 

Attendance  0  0  2,000  215  50  215  315  160  12,662        1735 

TOTAL REVENUE  $51,297  $38,052  $39,017  $73,607  $46,614  $78,535  $91,347  $57,487.74  $67,519.14  $  $  $  $60,386 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR    $543,476 

2017  JAN  FEB  MAR  APR  MAY  JUN  JUL  AUG  SEP  OCT  NOV  DEC  MONTHLY 
AVG Herman Park and 

W A Foster Centers             

Program Revenue  $2,637  $5,031  $4,024  $3,176   $2,086   $9,770   $18,262   $8,288   $965   $761   $170   $533  $4,642 

Rental Revenue   $975  $2,130  $2,425  $2,250   $2,354  $4,434  $5,967   $5,430   $6,015   $2,557   $1,695   $2,760  $3,250 

Facility Usage  6,330  7,936  7,199  7,708   6,288   10,697   14,452  14,299  7,340  10,695   8,750   9,396  9,258 

                 

Specialized Rec. 
and Senior Citizens                 

Program Revenue  $404  $269  $258  $250   $147   $96   $122   $129  $262  $383   $340  $370           $253 

Facility Usage  1,769  2,591  2,565  2,740   2,682   2,702   1,423   2,445  1,990  2,755   2,076  1,451  2,266 

                 

Athletics and Field 
Picnic Shelters                 

Program Revenue  $180  $1,530  $2,784  $2,280  $2,160   $2,730   $1,030   $2,775   $3,100   $1,400   $3,720   $975  $2,056 

Field/Shelter Rental  $0  $60  $0  $0  $0   $0  $0  $0   $0   $0   $0  $0  $5 

Facility Usage  1,848  1,781  1,822  2,132   3,819  1,002  1,038  804   1,210   5,410   920  1,314  1,925 

             

Golf Course                 

Revenues  $44,831  $37,874  $41,477  $47,999  $58,863  $69,605  $73,635  $44,073  $46,465  $51,594  $33,363  $17,080  $47,239 

Expenditures  $50,936  $44,370  $21,259  $6,435  $71,935  $50,891  $75,399  $60,365  $66,122  $56,740  $42,567  $54,415  $50,120 

                 

Special Events                 

Sponsorships  $0  $0  $1,200  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $26,400  0  $175  $0  $2,315 

Attendance  0  0  150  350  11  400  745  400  13,225  1,700  35  25          1,420 

TOTAL REVENUE  $49,027  $46,894  $50,968  $55,955  $65,610  $86,935  $99,016  $60,695  $56,810  $56,695  $39,288  $21,718 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR    $689,611 



 
Travel & Tourism Department 

Monthly Report – September 2018 
Prepared by:  Ashlin Glatthar 

 

 145 inquiries were fulfilled for the month of July by the TTO— 84 incoming phone calls, 30 visitors to the office, and 31 e-inquiries. 0 

promotional items were donated to groups staying in local hotels, due to group cancellations from Hurricane Florence.   

 Total hotel revenue generated in August was $1,879,404, which is up 4.4% YOY. July earnings not released yet.  

 For the month, TTO Facebook page had 39 new page likes. Instagram page has 58 new followers. Twitter page has gained 6 new followers.  

 During the first two weeks of the month, TTO was living and breathing NC Poultry Festival planning and marketing. The NC Poultry 

Festival took place on Saturday, Sept. 8th in downtown Goldsboro and held a successful attendance of 10,000 people throughout the day. 

Based on survey feedback, the least popular aspect was the hot weather and the crowd favorite was the helicopter tours and Jerrod Niemann 

concert. The committee held a wrap up meeting and plans to reconvene in November to improve festival plans and support for 2019.    

 TTO is attending the monthly air show meetings on base, and plans to formally award the ad agency with the task of facilitating the media 

services for the 2019 show.  

 Ashlin continues to meet with the staff of local hotels to share information about the tourism industry and what we have to offer our visitors. 

Feedback on these meetings have been positive as staff is more confident in recommendations and general knowledge about Goldsboro-

Wayne County. TTO will likely meet with staff twice/year.  

 Ashlin was part of the Wayfinding signage proposal review process at the Downtown Development at the beginning of the month.  

 TTO had intended to meet with the new economic development director for the WCDA, Mark Pope. Additionally, Linda Preistly with the 

Berkeley Mall had a scheduled meeting with TTO and Parks & Rec. Both meetings were rescheduled for October, due to Florence’s 

interruption. 

 Ashlin prepared marketing content, video + flyer material, to use at the TEAMS Expo at the beginning of October in an effort to network 

and recruit more sporting events to our complex and other facilities.  

 Ashlin continues to participate in the city’s strategic planning core team as we make final adjustments to measures for a more complete draft 

form of the plan.  

 TTO finalized a multi-page solicitation brochure as a tool for investors, as well as work with IT to build a landing page for the project. On 

September 5, TTO launched an email campaign to over 60 hoteliers across the country.  to send the link and information to hotel developers 

and management companies. On September 25, Ashlin mailed hard copies to the investors who clicked on the email and showed greatest 

interest in the project. No proposals or responses from investors have stemmed from these efforts. 60 day solicitation expires on November 

5th.  

 Goldsboro is hosting the USTA NC Singles State Championships on October 11-14, and staff from Parks & Rec and TTO started meeting 

weekly in September to finalize details of the tournament weekend and recruit volunteers.  

 Ashlin coordinated a weekend FAM tour with travel writers from the Triangle and Piedmont areas. 6 travel writers have confirmed for the 

weekend of October 13th, which should spur great publicity for our city/county. 

   

Occupancy Tax Collections YTD 

 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2018-19 $76,448 $71,981 $72,429          $220,858 $73,619 

2017-18 $81,794 $70,849 $71,323 $66,920 $68,268 60,726 $43,748 $51,800 $53,393 $68,272 $69,725 $78,449 $785,269 $65,439 

2016-17 $69,073 $77,434 $67,869 $58,613 $86,744       $87,662 $63,904 $60,529 $75,368 $68,577 $64,312 $64,218 $844,303 $70,359 
 



Item T


	Agenda 10-15-18
	Item A Minutes 10 01 18
	Item B-1 Sally Johnson Retirement Resolution
	Item B-2 Sally Johnson Retirement
	Item D  Z-15-18 Lane PH 10-15-18
	Item E  Z-16-18 Edwards PH 10-14-18
	Item F  CU-10-18 Ruffin PH 10-15-18
	Item G  Street Name PH Keller Way 10-15-18
	Item H  (2017-2018 CAPER) (Rescheduled Public Hearing)
	Item I-1  Installment Financing Budget Amend
	Item I-2 ORDINANCE Installment Financing IT
	Item J-1 Workers Comp - 10-15-18
	Item J-2 ORDINANCE Worker's Comp
	Item K-1 SRF Loan $2.6M - 10-15-18
	Item K-2 Resolution SRF Loan 2018 - 10-15-18
	Item K-3 ORDINANCE SRF Loan Closing Fee
	Item K-4 ORDINANCE Capital Projects - Phase 4 Sewer Coll
	Item L-1 Hurricane Florence Resolution - Designated Agent
	Item L-2 Resolution HM
	Item M  Victorian Mourning Temp Street Closing Memo
	Item M-2  Victorian Mourning Practices Event
	Item N-1  Veterans Day Parade Street Closing
	Item N-2  Veterans Day Parade Street Closing
	Item O-1 Downtown Lights Up Memo
	Item O-2 Downtown Lights Up
	Item P Historic District Appointment
	Item Q-1 LWGG Land Lease Agreement
	Item Q-2 LWGG Land Lease Agreement II
	Item Q-3 LWGG Map
	Item R-1 Code of Ord. Memo
	Item R-2  2018 S-42 Supplement
	Item S  Monthly Reports Cover Sheet
	Item S-1 HR Monthly Report
	Item S-2 CR Monthly Report
	Item S-3  Paramount_GEC Monthly Report
	Item S-4 Inspections Monthly Report
	Item S-5  Downtown Monthly Report
	Item S-6  IT Monthly Report
	Item S-7 PW Council Report -Maintenance
	Item S-8 PW Monthly Report -Utilities
	Item S-9 Finance Monthly Report
	Item S-10 Planning Monthly Report
	Item S-11 Engineering Monthly Report
	Item S-12 Fire Monthly Report
	Item S-13 Police Monthy Report
	Item S-14 Parks and Recreation Monthly Report
	Item S-15 Tourism Monthly Report
	Item T Halloween Proclamation

